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Church Vision Statement
To glorify God
as a cell-based church
passionately multiplying disciples

locally and worldwide
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Cell Vision Statement

Cell groups are here to glorify God as we grow spiritually and seek to fulfill the Great Commission
through body life. To achieve this purpose each group member aims at practicing the following:

Love and accept one another unconditionally

Pray for one another

Be accountable to group members for Christian living

Serve and build up each other by using spiritual gifts

Learn and live out God's Word

Complete D & E

Lead people to Christ as a team

The things said in a cell are confidential and will not be shared outside
the group except with zone pastor and zone supervisor
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When the group reaches a steady 12, it will reproduce to multiply the blessing to others. As you
grow and are led by God, you may begin to lead and shepherd a cell group.
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Chairman’s Report Hoytson Wong

i | sincerely thankful for the

opportunity to serve as
chairman of Grace Chinese
Gospel Church of North
York. The purpose of this
report is to provide an
overview of our church’s
activities, accomplishments,
challenges, and future
direction.

This past year due to some
staffs’ retirement (Rev David Lee) or transition to
part-time employment (Rev. Danny Cheung and
Pastor Michelle Kim), we added 3 new staff; Rev.
Sunny Wong and Pastor Richard Wong were added
to the Cantonese congregation, and Pastor Santos
Chan was added to English.

Two board members, Simon Tse and Edwin Ge
stepped down after many years of service. They
were replaced by Edwina Luu and Angela Wang this
past year.

Due to the pandemic, quite a few of our
missionaries returned home from the mission fields
they served, so our mission ministry as well as
budget were scaled back. On the other hand, our
local outreach has flourished, such as food bank
ministry, local community services, etc., just to
name a few.

For safety reason and following authority guidelines,
our church implemented worship online only during
the pandemic. After the imposed guideline was
removed, we actively encouraged, beseeched
members to return to in-person worship. So far,
majority of the members has done so. However, for
various reasons, quite a few members still stayed
away or continued to attend online. Our prayer is
that all will come back and worship in-person
together. There is definitely nothing can be more
important than having fellowship together. The
following bible verses teach us how beneficial
fellowship is to the believers; 1John 1:3,4,7; Acts
2:42; Heb. 10:24-25 and 2Cor. 13:14. Praise God!
Our church, despite all the hardships caused by the
pandemic, has achieved a balanced budget last
year just like all the years past. After all the
extraordinary spending, we still have a healthy
reserve in our bank account. We thank God for his
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bountiful provisions. We also must thank our
brothers and sisters for their faithful donations to
make that possible. May our Lord reward you all
abundantly for your faithful and sacrificial service.

For a while, our church was short-staffed. But with
the addition of new staff, the pendulum has swung
the other way. We pray to God to give us wisdom
and vision on how to utilize His rich provision. Was
the Lord telling us to be bold and courageous to
expand our horizon and take on new ministries?
The prayer of Jabez would be a good lesson for us
to ponder; “Jabez cried out to the God of Israel, “Oh,
that you would bless me and enlarge my territory!
Let your hand be with me, and keep me from harm
so that | will be free from pain.” And God granted his
request.” 1Chr. 4:10.

One of the year highlight was the celebration of our
church’s anniversary. We originally planned this
celebration as our 30" anniversary on the year 2020.
However, it was delayed because of the COVID.
This celebration was memorable and significant
because it showed how God has protected our
church throughout her history. A video, soon to be
released, was made to commemorate this historical
event.

Another memorable celebration was the retirement
party for our beloved Rev. David Lee. After decades
of faithful service at our church, he retired due to
health reason. We were sadden to see him go. But
we were at peace knowing that unlike the secular
world, retirement from pastoral ministry would not
separate him from our church. We pray that Rev.
Lee will continue to treat our church as his spiritual
home. Our church has participated every year in the
World Vision’s 6K for Water, raising fund for some
African countries. This past year’s effort has netted
a huge success by reaching a goal way over our
expectation. Many thanks to our brothers and
sisters’ generosity and love for the needy people of
the world. Praise the Lord for providing us with the
opportunity to show his love and care to the world
through us.

The COVID has caused havocs throughout the
world. Our church was no exception; our worship
attendance was reduced; many suffered COVID
issues, especially the elderly members; mental
health problems has increased significantly, just to
mention a few challenges we have had to face. But
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in spite of all these hardships/sufferings, God’s
protection and care came through in mighty way.

One favorable/desirable challenge we faced was the
arrival of the Hong Kongers. The unsettled political
situation in Hong Kong has led to the diaspora of
the Hong Kong residents. Quite a few have ended
up in our church. May God grant us the wisdom,
love and resources so that we can help them to
settle in our community.

Pandemic has forced us to increase spending in
Information Technology, such as our internet
broadband has to be upgraded in order to meet the
demand of meeting online; Hackers’ attacks has
forced us to rebuild our websites etc.,, the
implementation of this new technology has drawn in
the service of some young members who were
savvy in IT. Praise the Lord!

Our vision: “To glorify God as a cell-based church
passionately multiplying disciples locally and
worldwide.” To hold closely to our church’s vision,
our goals for the future remain to be church planting
and expand on mission ministry. To prepare us to
take on these tasks/ventures, we must continue to
multiply/develop more leaders. We thank all the
members, volunteers, staff and leaders for their
dedication and support to stride toward these goals.

Conclusion:

Thank you God, for your unwavering faithfulness
and abundant provisions. Your grace sustains us
through every challenge and blesses us with
unexpected blessings. In gratitude, we acknowledge
your constant presence in our lives, guiding us with
love and wisdom. Amen.
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Senior Pastor Report

Rev. Fanco Chan

The theme for the church this year is "Leadership
Training," we took the broad approach, meaning
that all believers are considered leaders. This is
because Jesus said we are the salt and light of the
world, so we must be leaders in this dark age,
leading people to know and follow the Lord, turning
away from sin, and receiving eternal life. To fulfill
this calling, believers must first be followers of Jesus
themselves and maintain a good and healthy
relationship with God so that our lives can glorify
God and benefit others (1 Timothy 4:12). Secondly,
we must understand that God has given each
believer different gifts and positions, with the
purpose of building up the church and leading
people to the Lord through collaborative efforts, so
believers need to recognize our gifts and serve
according to them (Ephesians 4:11-12). Finally,
leadership and discipleship cannot be separated;
not only must individuals faithfully follow the Lord,
but they must also consciously train the next
generation so that this mission and execution can
be passed on from generation to generation (2
Timothy 2:2).

In addition to believers collectively being leaders in
the world, within our spiritual community, there are
two types of leaders. The first type is leaders in
terms of gifts and functions, including pastors,
deacons, group leaders, and leaders of various
ministries. Having been endowed with spiritual gifts
from God is fundamental, but it's not enough;
believers also need to serve faithfully. After
accumulating experience, through the effectiveness
of their service and growth in character, they
gradually become recognized as leaders. However,
as leaders, it's not only necessary to have the
wisdom and ability to address current needs and
issues but also to have foresight to prepare for
future development and needs.

The second type is leaders in life, those who have
faith and love and become examples for believers in
speech and conduct, influencing and nurturing
others through their lives and interactions. These
leaders may not necessarily be leaders in ministry,
but their influence is just as significant. They not
only have knowledge of the truth but also have the
wisdom to view the world through the lens of truth
and handle life's challenges. They love God and
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others and understand the importance of humility,
waiting on and following God's guidance. As
spiritual direction has become a hot topic in recent
years, leaders not only give wise advice but also
gradually learn to help others learn to listen to God,
relying on Him rather than human opinions in facing
difficulties.

As a church, through worship, Sunday school
classes, disciple training, cell groups, workshop,
and promoting spiritual disciplines, we
systematically provide basic training to help
believers learn and apply the truth. By encouraging
service, helping believers identify their spiritual gifts,
and using service to practice and enhance their
spiritual gifts, we build character through serving
alongside others. Through the guidance and
mentoring of current leaders, we consciously train
new leaders. By encouraging the formation of
spiritual companionships, through mutual care and
accountability, we promote spiritual growth. Through
testimonies and sharing, we provide encouragement
and comfort, leading hearts back to God. However,
all of these efforts are external; if believers don't
have a heart for pursuit, dedication, and
perseverance, their knowledge may increase, but
their spiritual lives will stagnate.

This year, we faced two challenges in terms of
leadership. First is the transition of pastors. Pastor
Moses Liu of the Mandarin congregation left at the
end of the year, increasing the workload for Rev.
Dali Ren. However, thanks to the collaboration of
Rev. Chi Hung Siu and the deacons and group
leaders, everyone is working together to build the
church. Pastor Michelle Kim of the English
congregation is transitioning to part-time due to
retirement preparations, and we're grateful that after
his internship, Pastor Santos Chan officially joined
the ministry in October, serving alongside Rev. Ted
Tham and the deacons. Rev. David Lee of the
Cantonese congregation retired officially in July, and
Rev. Danny Cheung will also transition to part-time
next year due to retirement preparations; thanks to
God's guidance, Rev. Sunny Wong arrived in
September, and Pastor Richard Wong arrived in
November. With this, the pastoral team has
temporarily stabilized, but overall leadership still
needs some time for adaptation and cohesion in the
future to function effectively.

The second challenge is the lack of lay leaders
among believers. With the impact of the pandemic
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decreasing, although not all believers have returned
to in person gatherings, over the past two years,
God has added numbers to the church, and we see
that attendance in all congregations is gradually
increasing, with many newcomers. Additionally, with
some cell leaders and ministry leaders stepping
down due to age and family needs, there's a need
for more leaders. However, training leaders and cell
leaders doesn't have a short cut. Unable to catch up
with  the demand, each congregation is
contemplating how to adjust and change to meet
current needs. One direction is to delegate certain
established tasks of leaders to those with spiritual
gifts, which can not only lighten the burden and
shorten the time for training newcomers but also
encourage more people to support cell leaders and
ministry leaders and share responsibilities. Besides
practical work, this also includes emotional and
spiritual support and care.

Finally, as we approach the church's 35th
anniversary in 2025, pastors and leaders have
begun seeking and waiting for God's guidance,
exploring future directions. One possibility is church
planting. However, regardless of the direction, as
we face growth, the church must establish more
leaders to meet future needs. We hope that all
believers will rise up, actively engage in service,
strive for growth, not to meet the church's ministry
needs but because they feel the love of the Lord,
hear His call, recognize their gifts, and missions. We
pray that the Lord will make His will clear so that all
believers can experience and grow together in unity.
May the Lord preserve the church and all believers,
so that we can be salt and light in the community,
glorifying God and benefiting others.

Colossians 1:28: "We proclaim him,
admonishing and teaching everyone with all
wisdom, so that we may present everyone fully
mature in Christ."
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Cantonese Ministry Report
Rev. Fanco Chan

The theme of the church this year is "Leadership
Training." We have chosen a broad approach,
meaning that believers are called to be leaders in
the world as salt and light, leading people to know
and follow the Lord in this dark ages. In terms of
ministry, we have organized our activities according
to the three theme scriptures for this year.

1 Timothy 4:12 indicates that believers need to have
qualitative lives. Through worship sermons and cell
group, we aim to help believers establish stable and
healthy relationships with God and support one
another in living holy lives.

Ephesians 4:11-12 highlights that believers are to
serve according to their spiritual gifts. Through
Sunday school, believers gain deeper insights into
spiritual gifts and are helped to discover and
develop their own gifts for ministry. Additionally,
through Sunday school, believers learn about the
meaning and journey of diaspora: God's guidance
and shaping through the journey, to help us
experience Him more, be transformed in life, glorify
God and benefit others in our new home. We hope
that through this, believers will realize that their
arrival in Canada was not accidental and actively
contribute as salt and light in the community. We
are thankful to see more brothers and sisters
stepping into service, especially those who join
GCGC in recent years.

2 Timothy 2:2 emphasizes that building leaders is a
conscious and deliberate process. We tried to
organize disciple training again, but there have been
difficulties in scheduling, so it will have to wait until
next year. In Sunday school, we are intensifying
training efforts by inviting those gifted and
passionate about teaching ministry to join the team.
By the end of the year, we started to meet at the
end of each quarter to review and share together to
enhance quality and team spirit. In small groups,
pastors began to consider and plan how to
reorganize; details can be found in the cell group
report.
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There have been significant changes among
pastoral team this year. Rev. David Lee took a
sabbatical leave at the beginning of the year, but
due to an injury during his vacation, he still needs
proper rest when he officially retires in July. Rev.
Danny Cheung originally planned to retire this year
as well, but considering the needs of the church, he
agreed to temporarily postpone his retirement.
Starting in November, he will serve as co-lead
pastor with Rev. Fanco Chan. Rev. Chan is
responsible for overall strategy and pastoral training,
and Rev. Cheung is responsible for ministry
operations. We are thankful that after nearly a year
of searching, Rev. Sunny Wong joined in
September, and Pastor Richard Wong joined in
November. Rev. Cheung will take a sabbatical in
January next year and return in April to work part-
time. As we settled with staff arrangements, we are
fully committed to the next stage to develop
believers and ministry.

Darius Fok

Worship

The theme for 2023 was "Leadership Training" (1
Timothy 4:12, 2 Timothy 2:2, and Ephesians 4:11-
12). All believers are leaders, and pastors taught the
congregation to reflect on how God molds us amid
the pandemic; to discover our gifts and use them to
serve one another in small groups or within the
church; to reflect on how to improve and enhance
personal spiritual qualities; and to remind believers
that our lives have been illuminated by the light of
the Lord Jesus and how to shine for Him.

The average Sunday attendance throughout the
year was 167 people, with 44 units participating in
the live broadcast, which was a positive trend
compared to the previous vyear. Attendance
increased while live streaming decreased. Worship
messages continued to incorporate themes such as
Poverty Sunday, 3 Missions Sundays, 2 Baptism,
and Social Concerns Sunday. On 5/28, there was a
joint worship service for the 33rd anniversary of
GCGC, led by Rev. Fanco Chan, with the message
titled "Professional Congregation.”

Starting in June, members from the Hong Kong
ministry participated in music ministry, and in
September, the choir officially returned in person.
Various departments of worship began to involve
individual believers in serving, learning to serve one
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another. Newly appointed Rev. Sunny Wong and
Pastor Richard Wong began shepherding the
Cantonese congregation in the second half of the
year, while Rev. David Lee officially retired in July.
Thanks to the Lord for coordinating various aspects,
aligning time, and enabling believers to live out
mutual love, growing together spiritually. May
everyone continue to serve the Lord Jesus Christ
with one heart in 2024 under the new theme "Be a
Spiritual Community," growing together in the spirit
as soldiers of the Lord.

Discipleship & Equipping

Rodney Ho, Ginny Zhou

Objective: The chief objective of the D & E Ministry
over the last few years is to foster an open
atmosphere for learning the Word of God and by it
to face the challenges of today's world with honesty.

The 2023 Cantonese Church Sunday School
continues the focus on consolidating the
development of biblical foundations and life
applications in the previous year. It is also keen to
encourage all believers to discover the gifts God
has given them and use these gifts in building up
the church. Therefore, we have launched a spiritual
gift course, hoping to help believers understand and
discover their own gifts through interactive Sunday
school teaching. As a course for the whole
congregation, it allows all brothers and sisters to
understand that every believer has a gift and should
use the gifts they receive from God to build up the
church. Brothers and sisters also have a
responsibility to recognize each other's gifts. The
course also allowed brothers and sisters to share
their testimonies of how they discovered and
confirmed their gifts, and various departments had
the opportunities to introduce the church’s existing
ministries, including children’s Sunday school, social
care, outreach, worship and prayer ministries. It is
our hope that the church may function and grow
organically with all its members faithfully using their
gifts.

In addition, the 2022 "Theological Octopus" course
is continued, aiming to allow brothers and sisters to
reflect and explore theological issues together and
experience the true direction of theology through life
experience. The "Christian Ethics" course is a new
initiative that attempts to resolve problems that
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believers face today, addressing practical issues at
the individual and community levels. Instructor
Brother Mok provides students with helpful methods
for resolving ethical problems (in considering
principles/situations/motivations) using a Christian
ethical framework based on God's commands. The
first semester of the course discusses ethical issues
related to "reproductive technologies," "marriage
and sexuality," war, and justice. In the second
semester, the course will continue to explore more
ethical topics such as "Human Life", "Marriage and
Sexuality", Politics, Economy and ChatGPT. The
course provides a space for participants to explore
together as a faith community how to live according
to God's Word and truth in this generation.

Finally, the shortage of Sunday school teachers has
been one of the reasons that has hindered the
development of the ministry, but we believe that
God has given the gift of teaching to His chosen
people. Inspired and led by the Holy Spirit, Pastor
Cheung has proposed the vision and direction for
forming a team of teachers. The goal is to gather a
group of brothers and sisters who have received the
gift of teaching from the Holy Spirit. According to
their different expertise and teaching styles, they will
take turns in teaching D&E core courses with
pastors in a coordinated manner, forming a cycle
from Level 1 to Level 4, so that Courses at different
stages may be conducted systematically and
continuously.

Number of Students:

Spring Course(March-May)

L1 EV 17

L2 Baptism 8

L3 Golden Age 14

L4 Spiritual Gifts 82
2023 Year Book ZF3R



Summer courses (June-August)
L1 EV 29
L4 Diaspora 62

Fall courses (September-November)

L1 EV 13
L1 Life of Jesus 16
L2 Baptism 4
L3 OT History of the Return 36
L3 NT Book Background 25

Winter courses (December-Feb ruary)

L1 EV 15
L3 OT Survey 15
L3 1&2 Thessalonians 22
L4 Christina Ethics1 47
Level 1 — Gospel Class (I believe life is

wonderful)

The course is for catechumen friends. Through
songs, testimonies, and discussions on faith, friends
who seek the gospel can understand the gospel.

Level 2 - Baptism class
The course is intended for new believers. Help
believers understand the basic beliefs of Christianity.

Level 3 — The Golden Years: The Practice of the
Gospel (Acts)

The course is targeted at the elderly. The entire
book of Acts tells the story of the beginning, growth,
and spread of the church under the Holy Spirit, as
well as Paul's missionary journey, etc. Learn about
the work of the Holy Spirit and the development of
the church from studying the Acts of the Apostles,
and then reflect on how to continue to play the role
and function of the church today.

Level 4 — Spiritual Gifts

The target is any believer. God has given gifts to
every believer, but do we really need to use the gifts
in order to serve? This course uses "groups of three
to five" to understand, discover, and develop each
person's gifts through reflection and mutual
confirmation.
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Level 4 — Diaspora, the way back to home
Whether it was decades ago or in recent years, we
all immigrated or immigrated to Canada from our
place of origin. The process varies from person to
person. But have you ever thought about God’s will
in this? Where is home and hometown? Through
the format of "small groups", let's explore God's will
together. Learn to respond and try to deal with the
pain that may occur during the process, and finally
realize what a beautiful hometown God has
prepared for us, and live a positive, joyful, and
hopeful life.

Level 1 — Life of Jesus
Use stories and short videos to examine the life of
the Lord Jesus and how he changed the lives of his
disciples, helping new believers to understand the
Lord Jesus more deeply.

Level 3 - Old Testament Return History

Learn about God’'s grace from the books of Ezra
and Nehemiah, and how He led the Israelites to
return and rebuild the holy city, temple, and holy
people.

Level 3 — New Testament Book Background

By knowing more about the background of the New
Testament books, it will be easier to understand the
message of the texts. By contrasting and comparing
contemporary and modern situations, we can
appropriately obey God's Word in our own daily life.

Level 3 — Old Testament Survey

This course will start with comic videos and reflect
and discuss the central ideas of the Old Testament
books to help new believers understand the Old
Testament easily. From it, you can gain a brief
understanding of the relationship between God of
creation and His chosen people, understand the
background of Christ's salvation in the New
Testament, and help you study each book more
deeply in the future.

Level 3 —1 and 2 Thessalonians

Among Paul's final letters in the New Testament, 1
and 2 Thessalonians belong to his early writings.
"The Second Coming of Christ Jesus" can be said
to be the main theme of these two books and the
important message in the gospel. About one-fifth of
the two books deal with the return of Christ and its
relationship with believers and the world. Paul also
sent messages of comfort, encouragement, hope,
service to the Lord, and pursuit of holiness to
believers in these two books.
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Level 4 — Contemporary Christian Ethics

Help students understand some important principles
and methods of Christian ethics, and through
practical cases, students can have a deeper
understanding and analysis of some ethical issues.
Provide students with some guidelines for making
judgments and choices when they need to make
ethical and moral decisions.

Development results in 2023 and outlook for
2024

The D&E ministry team has been continuously
creating an open atmosphere over the past few
years, allowing everyone to study God’s word and
honestly face the challenges of today’s world. The
ministry is pleased to see students becoming more
comfortable asking honest questions in class and
seeking ways to follow God’s Word in a variety of
situations.

Second, the ministry is passionate about
encouraging all believers to discover the gifts God
has given them and to use those gifts to build up the
church. We see that God has given spiritual gifts to
the members of our church. We expect to see these
gifts clearly demonstrated in the church to the glory
of God.

In 2024-2025, the D&E Department has several key

goals:

1) An open and free atmosphere will become the
norm in all classes - open discussions between
teachers and students will become a habit.

2) Establish a new team of teachers for the new
generation of believers.

3) Facing the rapid pace of change in today's world,
the D&E department hopes to play the role of
research and development in the future.
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Winnie Ma

Evangelism

In 2023, the Seeker Class resumed in person, with
an average of about ten to twenty new HKers.

Between March and June, we held Alpha course on
Wednesday evenings, with over twenty young
people from Hong Kong participating. In June, we
organized a three-day, two-night Alpha weekend
camp. Though no one accepted Christ during this
event, it sparked interest in the gospel among many
friends.

Together with Peoples Gospel Church, on October
13th and 14th, we held the "Who Controls Life's
Sunset and Sunrise?" evangelistic drama night.
Brother Jack shared his testimony, and Rev Jim
Tam shared a message. These gatherings were
attended not only by members of Peoples Gospel
Church and our church but also by brothers, sisters,
and friends from various other churches. Over the
two days, twenty-eight people made decisions to
accept Christ.

In 2023, we had a total of 15 new friends accepted
Christ, distributed as follows:

1. Visits/other: 14 people

2. Evangelistic meetings: 1 person

We have seen how marvelous God's grace is, as
He has introduced us to many new arriving HKers
this year. Thanks be to the Lord for showing us that
the field of the gospel is indeed plentiful.

Outreach Rev.Danny Cheung

Outreach Ministry in 2023:
1. Online Karaoke every Friday night.

2. In March, a "Beautiful Date" event co-hosted with
Peoples Gospel Church, with over 100 ladies
attending.

3. Starting from July, badminton and Karaoke
events were held every fourth Monday night at
the church, with a 10-minute gospel sharing each
time.

4. Organized a 6K fundraising walk in September,
raising over Can$16,000 for water-deficient
countries in Africa.

Praise God for the Outreach Department's efforts
over the past few years, through various activities
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such as online lectures, gospel gatherings, 6K walks,
picnics, love feasts, Karaoke, and badminton, they
have reached out to over 500 friends. Whenever
there are evangelistic meetings or suitable
gatherings at the church, the Outreach Department
invites these 500 plus friends to join. The outreach
team unanimously agree that through these of
activities, they have shared the love of Christ with
these friends and believe that the seeds of the
gospel have been planted in their hearts. As Jesus
said, "One sows and another reaps," this is indeed
true (John 4:37).

Prayer Ministry
None of our prayers is wasted

Judy Hum

Prayer is likened to incense in the Bible. In Exodus
30, God commands that an altar of incense be
made for the tabernacle. And in Revelation
5:8 and 8:3-4, we read that our prayers ascend to
heaven like incense.

So how is prayer like incense? First, incense
ascends upward naturally. It is as if a golden bowl of
incense is being carried to the very throne of God in
heaven. Second, God loves the sweet aroma of the
prayers of his people. This means that if you are
crying out to God in prayer, that very act is pleasing
to God. He hears our prayers and none of our
prayers is wasted.

The Lord Jesus told us to "pray always and not lose
heart". We thank God for raising up a faithful group
of prayer warriors who come every Sunday
morning@8:30 and Tuesday evening@7:30 to pray
for God’s kingdom. The morning prayer meeting is
in person while the evening prayer meeting is
conducted online via zoom. The average
attendance of the prayer meeting in 2023 is: 8
people for the morning prayer meetings and 16
people for the evening prayer meetings. Our
WhatsApp prayer group continues to distribute
prayer news every Thursday. At present, there are
99 people in this group.

Let us as a church respond to God’'s command to
pray and come together every week to pray for our
church, our community and our world.

“Give ear unto my voice; my prayers have been

Caring and Visitation Liza Ki

We thank God that after Rev. David Lee retired at
the end of June 2023, He led Rev. Sunny Wong to
join our church in September and lead the Caring
and Visitation Ministry. Deacon Enoch Chan had
also joined our team earlier in April.

Rev. Wong is responsible for leading the Sunday
worship service at McNicoll Manor, as well as
arranging for speakers there every Sunday. The
average attendance of the worship service is 15,
and two of the attendees are residents from the
long-term care centre on the second floor.
Occasionally, patients from the hospital would be
attracted to come as well. Many elderly believers
have reduced mobility, and so they often can’t go to
church and worship with other brothers and sisters.
But the Christian seniors at McNicoll Manor are very
happy, because church is right on their floor, and for
this they are thankful. We have about 14 to 15
seniors  taking communion  together  and
remembering the Lord’s grace every first Sunday of
the month. There are also four seniors who have
reduced mobility or are sick and can’t come to the
worship service, so after the service is over, Rev.
Wong would bring the communion elements to their
rooms so that they could also take communion and
remember the Lord Jesus’ sacrificial love on the
cross. One of the seniors has severe sight and
hearing loss, and most of the time he would be
sleeping or sitting silently in a corner. Yet when we
say to him, “Jesus loves you,” he would look very
happy. When Rev. Wong brings communion to him,
he would laugh with joy. From this we can see how
different those who have the life of the Lord are.

At McNicoll Manor, besides having worship service
every Sunday, the visitation team (consisting of ten
brothers and sisters) still does visitations every third
Tuesday of the month. In the past year, four seniors
at McNicoll Manor passed away. Some were
longtime neighbours of the residents, and so the
brothers and sisters of the visitation team became
their comfort. The visitation team led four seniors to
Christ in 2023. On top of these seniors from
McNicoll Manor, a total of seven seniors came to
Christ in the past year. For one particular senior, his
faith was very firm after he came to Christ, and
although he became critically ill half a year later, he
still did not forget God’'s grace and trusted firmly in
the Lord to his dying day. Though we’re sad to see
some of the seniors we’ve come to know pass away,
we know that there will be more companions joining

ted Dbef Th i 7
?I;:::I‘:nz 141.1e ;)re ee as incense the banquet in the Kingdom of Heaven, and we’ll all
n rejoice in the Lord together one day. What a comfort!
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We continue to have Moses Fellowship every fourth
Tuesday of the month at McNicoll Manor, and we
have celebrations on special holidays like Christmas
and Chinese New Year. Starting from June 2023,
we've also added a seniors’ singing class on two
Thursday afternoons every month. The seniors
really like it, and they're especially engaged when
they sing old hymns and popular songs from their
youth.

Visitations to Yee Hong Centre also resumed in
October 2023, and we go on the first Saturday
morning of every month. Our team is led by Rev.
Wong and consists of five brothers and sisters from
our church, along with a couple from another church.
Christian seniors will also take communion at our
gatherings. For Christmas 2023, we had a big
gathering with seniors from other floors, Yee Hong
staff and volunteers, and brothers and sisters from
different churches. We all had a great time
celebrating the birth of our Lord together.

As for those who are newcomers to our worship
services in GCGCNY, Deacon Enoch Chan will
make the first contact and Rev. Wong is responsible
for following up. Visits are arranged if needed.
There are still some seniors who are sick and
cannot go to church and need to be visited as well,
and so we hope that more brothers and sisters can
join the visitation team and serve more of those who
are in need. Please pray for this.

“Praise our God, O peoples, let the sound of his
praise be heard; He has preserved our lives and
kept our feet from slipping.” Psalm 66:8-9

A5 EEZZ 0 I £ EHIEY) Gifts for new residents at
MecNicoll Manor
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Cell & Fellowship Rev.Fanco Chan

In 2005, a group of faithful believers and leaders
responded to God's call and united to establish the
Peoples Gospel Church in Markham. Since then,
another group of faithful leaders stayed in GCGC to
continue developing the church and congregation.
We praise God for their selfless sacrifices and
dedication in serving and building up others. Over
the past two decades, the structure of zone and cell
has changed with the changes of individuals and
families. Regarding the composition of cell leaders,
there has been overall stability, but at the same time,
there haven't been many new cell leaders. How to
effectively train new cell leaders became a major
theme this year.

After a period of reflecton and discussion,
coinciding with pastoral transitions, we planned to
temporarily change the operation of small groups,
hoping that these temporary changes will bring
breakthroughs. In June, we introduced the plan to
the ministry's deacons, in September to all group
leaders, and in November to the entire congregation,
collecting feedback and adjusting the plan during
this period. Changes began at the end of the year
upon new pastors report duty.

Overall, there are two aspects to the changes. First,
restructuring all zones, changing the situation where
some zone with only one cell due to demographic
changes. After the restructuring, the entire
congregation will be divided into six zones: Young
Adults, Young Families (those with children under
high school), Families (those with children in high
school), Adults (families with children in
college/university or with adult children merged with
career zone. This is the biggest changes as they
stayed in family zone in the past), Prime timers, and
Seniors. The second change is that we will run in
fellowship mode for one year as a transition, after
which cell groups will be reorganized. This
fellowship mode is convenient for new pastors to
connect with people from various cells in one
location and also promotes relationships and
understanding among members within the zone.
Additionally, each zone will hold Alpha or similar
events every two years for harvesting, and during
that time, cell leaders and members may be
remixed according to the needs for cell
multiplication. In the new setup, Rev. Danny
Cheung will supervise Prime timers. Rev. Sunny
Wong will supervise Young Families, Families, and
Seniors. Pastor Richard Wong will supervise Young
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Adults and Adult. It is hoped that through these
changes and arrangements, members will be
encouraged to participate more in serving,
effectively enhance leadership development, and
strengthen the outreach and coordination of cell
groups.

We praise God and give special thanks to a group
of faithful leaders who have served diligently over
the past year: Ophelia Chan, Simon and Calina Li,
Daisy Ho, Johnson Wong, Simon and Liza Ki, Alfred
and Katherine Tam, May Ng, Judy Hum, Lena Chan,
Conrad and Polly Chan, Enoch and Felicity Chan,
KK and Aster Choong, Jonathan and Peki Ng,
Kayson and Queenie Ko, Tony and Winnie Cheung,
Elden and Synthia Leung, Leo and Kinna Lou,
Michael and Queenie Lam, Andy and Katharine
Lam, Jolina Cheung, Ginny Zhou.
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Cantonese Congregation Testimonies
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Testimony R &%
TatKwan Wong E2E7E %

My profession is a doctor. In the clinic, there are
doctors, staff, and some university student
volunteers. Recently, one morning when | returned
to the clinic, | saw a third-year university student
volunteer. | felt strange when | saw her because she
was staring at the computer screen blankly. After
observing her several times at different times, her
performance remained the same. | couldn't bear it,
so | said to her, "Are you still not awake? Do you
know that everyone working in our clinic needs to be
completely focused because any mistake we make
can harm the patients." After saying this, | didn't feel
like | had done anything wrong and went back to
work.

An hour later, a staff who is responsible for
managing volunteers came to me and said, "Do you
know that after you spoke to that volunteer, she
started crying? | tried my best to console her, and
eventually, she stopped crying." When | heard this, |
asked the staff, "What should we do in this
situation?" The staff honestly said that | needed to
talk to the volunteer. My immediate reaction was
that | needed to go back and think about it first.

As | reflected on the situation, | felt that | hadn't
done anything wrong because | am the lead
physician of the clinic, responsible for ensuring that
the clinic's service to patients remains at the highest
level. Therefore, every staff member should
maintain 100% focus, and there should be no room
for error to prevent any harm to patients.
Additionally, | thought to myself, | am a doctor, | am
the supervisor, she is a subordinate, she is a
volunteer. | have the authority to speak to her in
this way. | also thought that her reaction seemed
weak; | only said a few words, and she started
crying. | felt like | was helping her grow and learn to
be stronger, so she should reflect on her own. All
these thoughts made me feel like | was in the right.

But as | continued to think, the Holy Spirit reminded
me of how Jesus treated me. | realized that Jesus
treated me with His love, grace, patience, and
tolerance, so | should also treat others with the
same attitude. | also thought, everyone in the clinic
knows that | am a Christian. Would this volunteer
desire to become a Christian because of my
behavior? Would she want to be like me? The
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answer was clearly no. So, | knew that the staff
member was right; | needed to talk to the volunteer
and apologize to her. At this point, | struggled a lot
because of my pride and ego, but | understood that |
could only seek help from the Holy Spirit.

Thankfully, God listened to my prayers, and the
Holy Spirit helped me. | asked the staff who is
responsible for volunteers to arrange for the
volunteer to come to my office. When the volunteer
came to my office, she looked frightened, probably
thinking that | was going to scold her. | asked her to
sit down and then said to her, "l have been
reflecting on what | said to you this morning, and |
realized that | was too harsh. | spoke too bluntly
without  understanding  your  feelings and
experiences, and | offended you. | apologize for that,
and | hope you can forgive me and accept my

apology."

She looked surprised and remained silent after
hearing this. | didn't say anything further; a minute
later, she spoke up, saying, "Actually, | was wrong.
You were right because | should be completely
focused when | come to work. Otherwise, any
mistake | make could harm the patients." | then
invited her to help me understand her experiences
and feelings behind this incident. After a brief
silence, she told me, "l stayed up all night studying
the night before because | had a major exam
yesterday. After the exam, | planned to sleep, but |
was still very nervous and couldn't sleep well, so |
came to work this morning feeling tired. | thought
about not coming, but | remembered my
commitment to the clinic, and | felt responsible to
fulfill my duty." After hearing her explanation, | said,
"Apologizing to you was the right thing to do
because | should appreciate your loyalty and sense
of responsibility, even though you weren't feeling
your best." After our conversation, her demeanor
relaxed, and she left my office with a smile.

As | reflected on this experience and the teachings
of Romans 12:1-2, God gave me three insights.
Firstly, “brothers and sisters”. | have blind spots,
weaknesses, struggles, and shortcomings, so |
need spiritual companions by my side to walk this
path together. | need a safe environment where |
can openly share my weaknesses, failures, and
shortcomings, and where someone can accept and
love me, speaking truthfully with love to help me
grow. I'm grateful to have such spiritual companions
in my workplace, family, and church. | don’t know if
you have such spiritual companions in your life. If
you don’t, | encourage you to pray and ask our
Heavenly Father for one.
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Secondly, Paul said, "I urge you, brothers and
sisters, in view of God's mercy." It's wonderful that
Paul didn't urge based on human logic but on God's
mercy. Many times, we try to persuade people
logically, but I've found that the greatest motivation
in the universe is love. When | deeply experience
and understand Jesus' unconditional love for me,
my heart is moved, and | want to respond to His
love and love Him. When | love Him, | want to do
what pleases Him. Obedience to Jesus without this
love relationship is burdensome and stressful, but
obedience in this love relationship, living for Him, is
joyous.

Thirdly, God is very merciful to me. | have believed
in Jesus since | was young, it has been fifty years
now, but | still struggle every day. My thoughts and
actions still mimic the world's ways, so | need to
learn to renew my mind and be transformed. | can't
do it on my own; | need the Holy Spirit's help,
relying on Him. Therefore, on the first Sunday of
2024, | made a resolution to ask the Holy Spirit to fill
me doubly in the new year, to be more intimate with
the Holy Spirit, to be more sensitive to His voice,
and to be more obedient to His teaching and
guidance. | invite you, brothers and sisters, to make
this resolution for the new year as well. Let's pursue
being doubly filled with the Holy Spirit this year. If
each of us is willing to do this, we will surely
experience God's healing, renewal, and revival in
our personal lives, families, workplaces, and church.

Thank you all very much.
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Testimony R:&
Kenrick Lau #/H[E

My name is Kenrick Lau, and my whole family has
been attending Cantonese worship and fellowship
for 29 years. Currently, | belong to the Adult
Fellowship on Friday evenings.

I work in a telecommunications company,
specializing in communication technology solutions.
Initially, my immediate  supervisor greatly
appreciated my work abilities, but unfortunately, he
was transferred after just six months. The new
supervisor seemed to target me, criticizing all my
work and implementing monitoring plans to control
everything | did. Along with this, there were constant
verbal attacks that took a toll on my mental and
physical well-being. Despite my efforts to improve
and pray to God for guidance, after a year, | couldn't
bear the torment from the new supervisor anymore.
| often suffered from insomnia and eventually fell ill,
necessitating me to apply for sick leave.

During this painful period, I'm thankful for the
spiritual support surrounding me. My Christian
parents, relatives, and brothers and sisters in faith
provided immense support. The pastor, leaders, and
members of my cell group prayed for me, cared for
me, and supported me. They frequently
communicated with me, and mentors and pastors
often provided guidance in private. Brothers and
sisters from my parents cell group also regularly
greeted me after Sunday worship. | am especially
grateful to Rev. Chan, Rev. Lee, Rev. Cheung,
Deacon Tat-Kwan Wong, and Deacon Rodney Ho
for their care. Their support, encouragement, and
understanding made me feel the love of God and
the love of brothers and sisters, ensuring | didn't
face my challenges alone. Without them, | believe |
would have suffered a mental breakdown.

Reflecting on this painful experience, I've witnessed
the miraculous work of God. Firstly, God had made
preparations beforehand. Even though | took unpaid
sick leave, | could apply for unemployment benefits,
and | received free legal aid from a lawyer. My
spiritual mentor called this a miracle because,
during the time of my application, there was a
decrease in cases due to the COVID-19 pandemic,
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so | received official approval the day after
submitting my application. Otherwise, | would
typically receive responses such as: cases are
backlogged and unable to handle yours at the
moment, only one or two free legal consultations are
available, or your case would have to wait for over a
year to be processed, etc.

The second miracle was being able to receive free
counseling from a professional social worker, along
with medical assistance. The social worker
mentioned that very few cases could return to work
like | did without psychological shadows, usually
rendering them unable to reintegrate into society.
Only through a miracle could one return to work and
find new employment.

The third miracle was finding my current job just a
month after being considered to have resigned from
my previous company. During the first online
interview at this new company, the IT director
immediately hired me after conducting a
background check, without requiring reference
check from past work. He even remarked that | was
precisely the person they were looking for, as if the
position had been tailor-made for me.

Through these experiences, God has molded me,
allowing me to help others with similar experiences.
I can now keenly understand the feelings of other
unemployed brothers, sisters, or friends and actively
care for and assist them. Additionally, I've learned to
speak more appropriately, saying things like: "God
loves you unconditionally, regardless of your job or
status”; “God has always looked after you, both now
and in the future”; “Feel free to talk to me if you
need anything," etc. At the same time, I've learned
to avoid saying unhelpful things like: "Get better
soon", "When will you recover?", "Don't be unhappy
all the time", etc.

| thank God for providing comfort and encourage-
ment through the following scriptures:

e Romans 12:17-21: "7 Do not repay anyone evil
for evil. Be careful to do what is right in the eyes
of everyone. ™8 If it is possible, as far as it
depends on you, live at peace with everyone. 1°
Do not take revenge, my dear friends, but leave
room for God’s wrath, for it is written: 'It is mine
to avenge; | will repay,’ says the Lord. 2° On the
contrary: 'lIf your enemy is hungry, feed him; if
he is thirsty, give him something to drink. In
doing this, you will heap burning coals on his
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head.' 2" Do not be overcome by evil, but
overcome evil with good."

e Philippians 4:6-7: "Do not be anxious about
anything, but in every situation, by prayer and
petition, with thanksgiving, present your
requests to God. And the peace of God, which
transcends all understanding, will guard your
hearts and your minds in Christ Jesus."

e 1 John 4:4: "You, dear children, are from God
and have overcome them, because the one who
is in you is greater than the one who is in the
world."
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English Congregation Annual Report

Pastoral Report Rev. Ted Tham

1 Samuel 167

But the Lord said to Samuel, “Do not consider
his appearance or his height, for | have rejected
him. The Lord does not look at the things people
look at. People look at the outward appearance,
but the Lord looks at the heart.”

Our 2023 church theme was “Leadership Training,”
so during our Sunday Services we spent most of the
year going through the life of a classic leader in the
Old Testament, King David. We saw how God
chose him not for his outward appearance, but for
his heart. Leadership is “from the inside out,” and
as we sought to grow together in leadership training
in 2023 we emphasized the importance of the inner
life and having the heart of a godly leader. In the
last-quarter of 2023 we also looked at how Jesus
trained His future leaders of the Church, His
disciples, through the use of parables from the
Gospel of Matthew.

Some special events in 2023 included:

e Missions Conference (Jan 27-29, Pastor
Johnson Hsu — adults; Kevin & Jessica Teh —
youth).b Theme: To move men, through God, by
Prayer alone. We also commissioned Kevin &
Jessica as our missionaries to Japan that
weekend & had a farewell gathering on Feb. 4

e Poverty Sunday (March 12, Rev. Ted - “Real
Riches”)

e Good Friday (April 7, Rev. Fanco - “Turning
Point”)

e Easter Sunday (April 9, Pastor Santos - “Faith in
the Resurrection”)

e Mission Sunday (April 30, Rev. Dr. Surgj
Komaravalli (CBM India) - “Broken World to
Witnessing Church”)

e Mother's Day (May 14, Rev. Ted — “Rest and
Family”)

e Church 33" Anniversary (May 28, Rev. Fanco —
“Professional congregations”)

e Baptism & New Members (June 11, Rev. Ted —
“Baptised with Joy”)

e Baptism: Marcus Chan, Michael Zhang

¢ New Members: Clarence Chan, Shervonne Chin,
Karl Hui, Margaux Kan, Miga Kim, Julie Zhang

e Father's Day (June 18, Pastor Michelle -
“Fathers Reflecting the Love of God”)
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e Outreach Sunday (July 2, Rev. Danny — “Sheep
Without a Shepherd”)

e Mission Sunday (July 30, Pastor Santos — “Love
Your Stranger”)

e Social Justice Sunday (Sept. 24, Rev. Tim
Grieves (CGC Scarborough) — “Worshipping
God in Exile”)

e Thanksgiving (Oct. 8, Rev. Emad Botros (CBM
Lebanon) — “The Church and the Gospel”

e Stewardship Sunday (Oct. 22, Pastor Michelle —
“Costly Worship”)

e Compassion Sunday (Oct. 2, Rev. John Park
(Compassion Canada) — “Sheep without a
Shepherd”)

e Advent Sunday (Dec. 10, Mr. Joshua Mok — “Is
the Great Commission Still Great?”)

e Baptism:Nicole Yap

e New Members in 2023: Clarence Chan,
Shervonne Chin, Karl Hui, Margaux Kan, Miga
Kim, Julie Zhang, Priscilla Leung, Jeffrey Lou,
Daniel Tse, Josh Wong

- Christmas Potluck (Dec. 22, various speakers &
testimonies)

- Christmas Service (Dec. 24, Rev. Ted -
“Christmas: From Worries to Worship”)

- End-of-Year Service (Dec. 31, Pastor Michelle —
“End with Renewing”)

- Dr. Clement Yeung mini-series on book of Daniel
(Feb. 19, Apr. 23, Jun. 4)

- English Congregation Lunches (May 7, May 28,
Jul. 9, Aug. 27, Nov. 26

- English Leadership Retreat (Jun. 10)

Staff:

We thank God for our Pastoral Team, including our
Sr. Pastor Rev. Fanco Chan, Youth & Student
Ministries & Discipleship Assistant Pastor Santos
Chan, part-time Women’s Ministry Assistant Pastor
Michelle Kim, and part-time Production Team
Technician & Administrative Assistant Mr. Wilson
Kwong. We want to also give a special mention and
thanks to our former Administrative Assistant Mrs.
Mary Wei, who has been with us for many years but
stepped down recently. As usual, the government
blessed us with several funded summer interns,
including Mr. Samuel Chan (student ministries) and
Mr. Andy Luc (website).

Prayer Ministry:
Prayer is a real “ministry,” as much as the many
other ministries in our church. God says that His
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church should be known as a “house of prayer”
(Matthew 21:13). We want that to be said of
GCGCNY English congregation! In 2023 prayer
groups included two weekly congregational prayer
meetings on Wed. evenings and Sun. mornings;
Mon. morning (bi-weekly) and Thurs. evening
(weekly) men’s prayer groups, women’s prayer
gatherings, teen’s prayer meetings; a monthly
prayer meeting for caregivers, and numerous
regular prayer groups in fellowship and cell groups.

Deacons:

Our deacons are very much on the frontlines of
spiritual warfare — leading the charge in various
areas and taking a lot of “hits” through criticisms and
persecutions. They have sacrificed so much for the
sake of the gospel, and we thank God for their
faithful and dedicated service in 2023, these
included: Deacon Hoytson Wong (Vice-chair),
Deacon Howard Chin (IT, Church Community &
Membership), Deaconess Edwina Luu (Children),
Deaconess Jessica Leung (Student & Women’s
Ministries), Deacon Kevin Ho (Family), Deacon Xiao
Wang (Worship, Media) and Deaconess Sylvia
Szeto (Missions).

Youth Ministry Pastor Santos Chan

Genesis Youth Fellowship

In 2023, Genesis has updated its mission statement
to “empowering youth to discover, enjoy, and share
a life with God.” In 2023, we saw God use the youth
in Alpha and Softball Ministries to give the friends of
our regular members an exposure to the Gospel
and to an authentic Christian community. We saw
God continue this work so that a quarter of the
youth committed or rededicated their lives to God at
our retreat.

We have also restructured our leadership so that
Christians at every stage of maturity have an
important role to serve and grow as a leader. We
have also created space for adults with varying
experiences, maturity, and availability to discover
youth ministry and build friendships with youth. As a
whole, Genesis has been empowering the youth to
plan, invite friends, and lead outreach nights
together. In the future, we hope to be able to lead
congregation-wide moments to discover, enjoy, and
share a life with God.
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Worship Ministry
Deacon Xiao Wang

2023 has been a tremendous year of growth for the
English Worship Ministry. Our main focus for the
year was to grow in number of team members to
have 3 consistent teams, and to develop the
spiritual maturity of each of the team members
through their service.

The three worship teams are currently run by James
Relunia, Ronson Ng, and Xiao Wang and the
following members:

J Team Xiao: Ethan Chen, Darren Ko, Payton
Chan, Andy Luc, Wilson Kwong

. Team Ronson: Iris Ng, Erika Shoenebeck,
Wendy Ng, Ethan Chan, Beatrice Woo, Kevin
Lau, Ryan Chan

. Team James: Christine Relunia, Shervonne
Chin, Marcus Chan, Simeon Wong, Justin
Chiu

The Tech ministry will be split into two separate
ministries to lessen the burden of Wilson Kwong as
well as provide better expertise in their respective
areas:

e Wilson Kwong - Video / Livestream & equipment
e Simeon Wong - Audio / Sound & equipment

To grow the teams in their spiritual walks and their
understanding of worship, each worship team has
begun doing more focused devotions based on the
sermon passage and topics at the beginning of each
practice. This was introduced to provide the team
with a better understanding of not only the
theological (head) aspect of musical worship, but
also our emotional (heart) response to God’s truths
and helps the team explore how they can bring the
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congregation to have a genuine emotional response
as well. This will help provide discipling
opportunities in the team to learn about the process
of planning and preparing for Sunday Worship and
the place of musical worship in our everyday life.

As we continue to grow, we are also looking to
transition the worship ministry into a place for
people of different spiritual maturity to serve and
exercise their gift. A big focus going into 2024 is to
shift the model of the worship ministry from a
Believe -> Behave -> Belong model to a Belong ->
Behave -> Believe model, allowing members of the
congregation to participate and exercise their gifts
regardless of their experience, maturity, biblical
knowledge and commitment. The previous model of
Believe -> Behave -> Belong emphasized on
knowing what is right and wrong before serving so
that we can do service in the correct way, before we
can enjoy the ministry which we serve in. With the
change to Belong -> Behave -> Believe model, our
focus will shift to fostering a journey of serving and
growing together, recognizing that God didn't call us
to be perfect before serving, but that serving
together is part of the journey of growing and
transforming to becoming more Christ-like, through
fostering relationships with more mature Christians,
and leaders, by doing and imitating, leading to
eventually growing to understand both in our head
and our hearts. This will also allow the current
mature members to have an opportunity to disciple
the new members in various aspects of worship,
and also develop deepening relationships and
friendships and foster growth in their faith.

Media Ministry Xiao Wang

In 2023, the English congregation Website was
completed by Andy Luc, overseen by Simeon Wong.
As we move into 2024, we continue to seek more
opportunities to use media as a way for the leaders
and members of the congregation to connect and
grow together in various formats.

We are continuously seeking someone to help lead
and guide this ministry in the future.
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Adult Leader Sam supervising water sports
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Discipleship & Equipping
Adults: Rev. Ted Tham

Hebrews 4:12

For the word of God is alive and active. Sharper
than any double-edged sword, it penetrates
even to dividing soul and spirit, joints and
marrow; it judges the thoughts and attitudes of
the heart.

God’s Word is powerful, and one of the mandates of
all churches is to teach and share His Word to our
needy and desperate world, where truth is a sparse
commodity. We thank God for our discipleship and
equipping (D&E) ministry in  our English
congregation. Through various venues, such as cell
groups, discipleship groups and the weekly Sunday
School the Word is being taught and disseminated
throughout the congregation. In our adult Sunday
School in 2023 we studied:

Jan-May:

Sat. mornings: Minor Prophets (Pastor Michelle)

Sun. mornings: Job: A Man of Heroic Endurance
(Rev. Ted)

Jun-Aug:

Sun. mornings: Cross
Evangelism (Danny Wong)
Hope in Hurtful Times - 1 Peter (Pastor Michelle)
Sep-Dec:

Sun. mornings: 2 Peter & Colossians (Rev. Ted,
Robert Yeung, Pastor Michelle)

Cultural Mission and
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Youth: Pastor Santos Chan

We have adjusted our schedule from 3 terms a year
to 4 terms to match and partner with KLS. Now, the
terms are Dec-Feb, Mar-May, Jun-Aug, Sep-Nov.
By God’s grace, we have updated our curriculum to
be ready to use for every qualified teacher. God
answered our prayers by sending new teachers and
new teachers in training. Coming out of the
pandemic, we have also transitioned away from one
class for all youth in grades 7-12 to one class for
grades 7-8 and one class for 9-12s. In 2023, we
have learned the basics of the Christian faith, how
to grow as a Christian, and what every book of the
Old Testament and New Testament is about.

Evangelism Andrew Leung

In 2023, our congregation pursued evangelism in
volleyball and softball. Volleyball ministry began
partnering with a newly formed volleyball league
(CCVL),with nine teams participating weekly on
Saturday afternoons, attracting 60 to 80 attendees,
the league intertwines sports and spirituality with
team captains leading devotionals. It serves as a
platform for outreach, bolstering attendance at
GCGCNY and CGCS drop-ins, while auxiliary
events such as online prayer meetings and special
volleyball sessions have fostered community
bonding. As of December 2023, the Discord server
boasts over 425 users, with CCVL's inception
contributing to its growth alongside an expanding
core group. This vyear's adult softball team,
Unchained, consists mainly of our university
students from the previous year with a few
experienced players joining. The team focused on
sharpening on field skills while providing a space for
seekers to fellowship with our community regularly
throughout the week.
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Team Unchained. 2023

Volleyball Christmas Potluck 25 81 Bk B &

Fellowship Ministry
Family Z D Kevin Ho)

Over the past year and a bit, the family zone
leadership has had in the back of our minds the
need for developing new leaders and shaping the
ministry to allow for intergenerational
development. 2023 we started the planning and
transition into a new Adult Zone and moving
towards setting up intergenerational cell
groups. Starting with various family zone events
to connect our existing cell groups, we started down
this path. In 2024, the Adult zone will kick off with
events designed to connect people and cell groups
will be formed. Thank you to all the family cell
leaders who have lead their groups through the
challenges of the pandemic and into a new season
for our members. Leaders: Kevin Ho, Hoytson
Wong, Lillian Wong, Pastor Ted Tham, Pastor
Michelle Kim, Edwina Luu, Andrew Leung.
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April 9, 2023 — Easter Swiss Chalet — Zone nch
2 ZEIFES Swiss Chalet

—

March 25, 2023 — Building Authentic Friendship Men’s
Workshop

Our church hosted 50 men for a workshop on Building
Authentic Friendships. We collaborated with churches
from Stouffville, Markham, and Mississauga to enjoy
breakfast, worship and a time of edification.

AdultZone:

Career Cell (Mr. Kevin Lau)

The career group has been a challenge this past
year as various members of our group went through
several life issues. But God has been gracious to us
with our group growing closer through the struggles
and more people sharing deeper and contributing to
group discussions. We have completed Rick
Warren's book, "The Purpose Driven Life" and have
continued with outreach/activity nights such as
bubble tea, board games, outdoor hikes, restaurants,
mission nights, and even axe-throwing!

Prayer requests:

1. spiritual and physical growth

2. patience in dealing with each other
3. for the forming of the new cell groups
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Thurs. Night Cell (Mrs. Jennifer Yu)

The young adult cell has evolved a lot since 2019.
We went through 2 cell merges, had cell fully online
and hybrid; so naturally we saw some faces come
and go for various reasons.

Nonetheless, God used our cell as a catalyst for
deeper discipleship amongst the pockets of those
who grew closer to one another and also
encouraged some to step up to become cell leader
interns. Those who felt more integrated into our
church due to the cell community went on to lead
and serve in other ministries (Wednesday volleyball,
Sunday worship, Rooted, etc)

Although we never got to multiply and only ever got
larger with new faces every year due to the nature
of the demographic, those who came for the first
time always voiced that they felt welcomed and safe
to be part of the community.

Mystery Boardgame Event
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Last Cell Celebration/Send Off Event

Student Zone: (Jessica Leung)

Though we started as leaders of different groups
with many different visions, passions, and giftings,
God was faithful to bring everyone together to have
a united vision as we invest in the student
population. Every term, God provides enough
leaders for the students who sign up for discipleship
groups. In every season God has been growing the
leadership team to work together in unity, as God
calls us to.

In one of the girl's discipleship groups, we have
been praying over a student, inviting her to join our
discipleship group, to be more connected to the
church body in Toronto. Recently, she reached out
to one of the discipleship group members for
personal support. The two were able to deepen their
friendship and this is another opportunity for her to
remain connected and to encourage her to join a
discipleship group. We continue to pray for her for
the summer term.

Lastly, a newer member of our student zone has
been attending cell and a boy’s discipleship group.
By God’s grace, he came to faith as he saw
members of his cell and discipleship group actively
evangelizing and caring for him. He confirmed his
faith in cell and discipleship group. This has been a
great witness of God’s faithfulness and work in the
lives of our students! Besides these, there are many
stories of God’s faithfulness in leading a young
ministry and young leaders. Though we are limited
in our understanding and wisdom, God continues to
provide for, protect, and nurture his people.
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Student Zone Leadership

Missions Subcommittee

Sylvia Szeto

Matthew 9: 37-38

Then he said to his disciples, “The harvest is
plentiful but the workers are few. Ask the Lord
of the harvest, therefore, to send out workers
into his harvest field.”
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We thank God for not only a wonderful harvest of
souls throughout this world, but also allowing us to
participate through our prayers, going out,
supporting various missionaries and financial
giving. Due to the sensitivity of the various areas
we are involved with, we cannot list many here, but
those we can mention include:

--Rev. Suraj Kamaravalli (CBM - India) who came
and preached to us in April.

--Rev. Emad Botros (professor at the Arab Baptist
Theological Seminary in Lebanon) who came and
preached to us on the Thanksgiving weekend

--Rev. Joe Bridi (CBM - Lebanon)

--Kevin, Jessica & daughter Aria The who we
commissioned and left for Japan in Feb.

--Johnson Hsu spoke at Missions Conference

--Pastor Eva Poon & Ida Yee went on short term
missions over Christmas to Mexico

--Tim Phan has since retired from Ambassadors for
Christ in March to be an intern at a local church.

Social Concern Subcommittee
Rev. Ted Tham

Matthew 25:40

“The King will reply, ‘Truly | tell you, whatever
you did for one of the least of these brothers
and sisters of mine, you did for me.’

We have the privilege of being the hands and feet of
Jesus as we share His love through good deeds.
And in a very real way, when we serve others, we
serve Jesus. The Community Service & Concern
ministry at GCGCNY did much in 2023, and we
thank God for the many lives touched.

Highlights of 2023 include:

- Food Bank — we thank God for Joanne Chan’s
sacrificial hard work these last 2 years. Her
commitment will soon be over, and she is currently
planning to delegate her roles to various leadership
members and make a proposal to hire a Contract
Program Administrator to replace the current
Administration Assistant position.
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- Credits for Living Waters Counseling still available.
Many took advantage of this opportunity in 2023.
Renewed for 2024.

- Presence Caregivers group still active (Rev. Ted
participating)

- Church Social Concern Focus for 2023 was
refugees & human trafficking.

Our English congregation promoted and supported
the NIDA project (CBM Kolkata, India) which helps
women exit the sex trade in the largest red-light
district in Asia.

We also promoted fund raising for Undocumented
Refugees hosted by some NW Toronto local
churches and community organizations.

- World Vision 6K Walk for Water — 71 people from
GCGCNY participated. $16,298 raised for wells in
Africa “
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English Congregation Testimonies
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Baptism Testimony %% R & Marcus

Hello everyone, my name is Marcus, I'd like to share
my testimony with you today.

| was diagnosed with Asperger's Syndrome, a kind
of autism, when | was 5. Unlike my peers, | wasn't
driven by popularity or grades and | was instead
very intrinsically motivated. Growing up with
different values made it hard to find friends, and in
Grade 1 or so, my parents began to take me to
church in an attempt to solve this problem, but this
was unsuccessful. Eventually, | stopped attending
church completely, until Grade 7 when | started
going to a more community-oriented youth group on
Friday nights.

As | grew older, | developed various passions like
computers, parkour, and stocks, and more. |
engaged deeply with these interests because |
believed they could lead me to a fulfilling life - they
were my analog to grades and popularity. God was
not a part of my life during this time. In Grade 11, |
joined an extracurricular program for aspiring
entrepreneurs and individuals wanting to make an
impact. | pushed myself to excel in the program,
driven by my competitive nature, but a part of me
also wanted to prove myself despite my differences.
Although the program had good intentions, the
competitive environment influenced me negatively. |
looked down on those not in the program, wanting
to be superior to others. If | had weaknesses others
didn’t have, | needed to have strengths others didn’t
have. It was only fair.

With my heart more fixed on popularity and success,
God decided the coming year was a season to
discipline me. In that period, | faced a series of
unfortunate events, facing failure after failure,
breaking relationships and having relationships
broken on me, and becoming increasingly confused
about the state of my life. This all led up to
university-program-choosing season, and at that
point, | knew something in my life had to change.

Initially, | was drawn to my prestigious offers, driven
by this desire for success. However, | felt called to a
program | did not apply to called Knowledge
Integration at Waterloo, an interdisciplinary arts and
science program that allowed me to pursue my
passions through the many electives | was allowed
to take, while its core courses focused on
transferable skills. In a step of faith, | applied to this
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program after the deadline and was accepted, and |
took the offer. Being in such a flexible program
opened up many opportunities, and in my first year,
| used my free time to start new initiatives in CCF
and serve the fellowship.

Around a year ago, my faith began to grow. It was
due to several factors: good conversations with my
other Christian friends, playing softball here, and
doing accountability and sharing journals with
people close to me. Softball, in particular, was a
place where | was exposed to so much of God’s
grace. Even though my anxiety led me to walk away
on my own during breaks, the team made every
effort to include me and make me feel welcome.
Over the past year, | started considering baptism as
the next step in my faith journey.

| was also met with a lot of challenges in this period.
My mental health fell, with my anxiety being
increasingly disruptive to my daily life and autism
and ADHD continuing to reduce my self-esteem.
Suddenly, | could look at others and feel terrible
about the lack of direction and security brought
upon by my neurodivergence, which never
happened before. | felt like people could only see
my strengths, but all my struggles were invisible. |
felt alone and helpless, even considering deferring
the baptism to another date. But after praying about
it, | felt overwhelming peace, and | remained
confident in my decision to be baptized at this time.

From all this, | understand that | am a sinner and |
require Christ's blood, which was shed for me on
the cross, to forgive my sins and grant me eternal
life. | was captivated by my desire to overcome my
weaknesses which resulted in my hubris and
excessive ambition, and while | was led away for
some time, God was good and brought me back to
Him. As you know, | still struggle with my
weaknesses: | still feel overcome by anxiety, | still
feel crushing loneliness, and I'm still pretty
overcompetitive. But | feel more at peace knowing
that somehow, God is using this for good. In 2
Corinthians 12, the apostle Paul writes about a
thorn in his flesh, which remained despite Paul
begging God to take this away from him. Instead,
God told him, “My grace is sufficient for you, for my
power is made perfect in weakness.”

In my testimony, | have spoken gladly about my
weaknesses, so that Christ's power may rest on me.
| hope my story resonates with at least some of you,
who might be feeling the same way, and | hope you
will also be able to find your strength in Jesus.

Thank you for listening.
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Personal Testimony f& A R:& Nicole Yap

Hi everyone, for those of you who don’t know me,
my name is Nicole, and | am here today to share my
testimony of how | came to Christ.

| was not raised in Christian home, nor did | come
from a home where religion was very important. |
came from a humble home and was raised by
immigrant parents who just pushed me to study
hard, go to university, and get a good job. They told
me that by following this formula, | will have a good
life. | was not concerned by things like faith and my
exposure to Christianity was minimal and
elementary.

As | grew older, especially in high school, | was
surrounded by many friends who believed in Christ
and called themselves Christian. During that time, |
found myself wondering more about Christianity and
if God is real. To me, He was this cosmic character
who overlooked us and maybe had the power to do
things? Despite my beliefs, | still asked them
questions about their faith and some random
questions | had such as “What's the difference
between God and Jesus?” Although answers were
given to me by my friends, | still found myself
unbelieving and called myself an agnostic.
Christianity was still unfamiliar to me, and | just felt
this unexplained uncomfortableness.

Years go by and | graduate and finish University. |
was almost through the goals my parents told me to
accomplish. | started working full-time at a company
and during this time, | remember feeling lost and
thinking, “Is this it? Is this what my life will be from
now on?” These thoughts caused me to have
feelings of emptiness and an existential crisis, but |
just brushed it off and continued.

Later, | met someone at my company who became
a very instrumental person in my life. They
encouraged me to attend Church and share in their
faith. While | was a bit hesitant, | was not opposed
to the idea, so | began to regularly attend Sunday
service at a church in Toronto in November 2021.
My first experience with Church really surprised me,
and it was humbling. | realized all the stereotypes
and outside knowledge that | have gathered while
living my life were wrong, and | found myself being
curious again. As | continued to attend Church,
however, | did struggle to understand and connect
to the sermons and messages being shared at
times. | thought this was due to my lack of
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knowledge and this pushed me to independently
figure out what Christianity is all about and what
does Christ mean to me.

The Church | was attending was far away from
home at the time, so | asked around and was
introduced to Grace Chinese Gospel Church. |
started attending at the end of April 2022, and | was
moved by the message being preached on the first
day. | was welcomed by many friendly faces and the
community here is very warm and supportive. | felt
motivated to keep coming here and later, | was
encouraged to sign up for an Alpha course, which is
a course for non-believers, skeptics, and new
believers.

During my time at Alpha, | was facing a tumultuous
time in my life. So, to give some background, | am
a CPA, and it is a profession that requires lots of
studying and exams. There is a 3-day licensing final
exam that all candidates need to write, and you
have 3 tries to pass it. Honestly, | am terrible at
taking exams and unfortunately, |1 found myself
writing it for a third time and was feeling so much
anxiety waiting for the results (there’s a three-month
waiting period by the way). | also had my
relationship abruptly end and | was left heartbroken
and grieving. And finally, | was facing extreme
pressures at my workplace that left me feeling burnt
out and unappreciated. In just an instant, | found
myself feeling hopeless and my mental health took
a huge nosedive. Despite these difficulties | was
facing, | still took the time to attend the course as |
found solace in talking to fellow church members.

| was still trying to discern what was being
presented to me, but during one of the sessions,
there was a quote that said, “Instead of trying to
understand to believe, you should believe to
understand.” Although a very simple quote, | was
profoundly impacted by it and | realized that the
reason | struggled to understand was because |
lacked faith. | did not have the heart because | kept
thinking about how much head knowledge | was
lacking.

After that, things started to click for me, but | still felt
unsure about committing myself to Christ. However,
to paraphrase something someone said in Alpha,
“Being Christian is all about having a relationship
with God and knowing him. The Bible shouldn’t be
looked at as a rule book of things you can or cannot
do. Instead, you should realize that when you have
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a relationship with someone, you don’t desire to hurt
them by doing things they don’t like.” It was such a
simple explanation, and yet | didn’t grasp it until that
moment. At that moment, | felt as though everything
made sense. After Alpha, | decided to become a
believer.

The moment | decided to accept Jesus Christ into
my life, | felt immediate inner peace. All my
problems and worries were still there, but | felt a lot
of hope and a ray of light in my heart. | felt a desire
to keep learning more about the Gospel and sought
after that. | learned about God’s love and His grace,
and since that day, | feel as though He has given
me many blessings that show His love.

As | stand in front of you today, | wanted to share
that | have passed my exams and got my CPA
license. | got back together with my partner, and we
have built a more solid relationship. At work, |
prayed for being given a new role where | felt
appreciated, and | now have a wonderful
opportunity to work with a team that is more
supportive and is a better fit. To me, this is a
testimony of His faithfulness to us when we invite
Him into our lives.

I am still learning, but one thing | have come to
know is that | can place my rest and trust in Jesus
Christ. His willingness to sacrifice himself on the
cross to pay for my sins, is the ultimate expression
of His love. | can be assured that | am forgiven for
my sins and not only that, | have been given eternal
life. There may be times where we can grow weary
and we may struggle, but rest assured He has your
best interests.

As | conclude for today, | have to say that | found
purpose and feel more whole. There is more to life
than the formula that was being pushed on to me. |
hope that my story is able to relate to some of you.
Thank you for listening.
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Testimony R&& Michael Zhang

| wasn’t born in the church, but | had friends who
were Christian. They invited me to gatherings such
as small groups, banquets, and fellowship. Even
before | came to know Christ, | knew what he was
capable of through the power of community.
However, at that time, it was all too overwhelming
for me, and thus it intimidated me. | was reluctant to
give any real consideration to who Jesus was and
what Christianity meant. My girlfriend at the time
would encourage me to learn about God and tell me
about her Christian life, but | didn’'t give it enough
thought.

| always believed that we were inherently ‘evil’. Not
in the exact sense that we are all sinners, but | did
understand that we had too much capability to be
bad. With this realization, | would always be slightly
critical of myself; critical of my lack of motivation,
aspiration, desires to do more. | also developed an
inability to control my thoughts, which led to anxiety,
and | would often blame a ‘higher power’ for this...
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but then | would apologize to God, because | was
scared of him.

In university, | was overweight, | was unmotivated,
and | was anxious. | slowly became depressed.
Around this time, big changes were happening in
my life, and my depression worsened as | recalled
on my lack of interpersonal relationships. My
girlfriend always said that if my relationship took a
turn for the worse, | should seek God. So for the first
time in my life, with all that was happening, |
decided to seriously think about God.

It was after work during one of my co-ops, at a bus
stop. | was contemplating life a lot. | searched up
about the Gospel, about Jesus, and about what
makes someone a ‘Christian’. | learned that to be
saved, you only needed to acknowledge that you're
a sinner, that Jesus came down to earth and died
for our sins so that we could be saved, and was
resurrected.

So | confessed. | confessed that | was a sinner, and
that | wanted to come to believe in Jesus, that |
have come to believe in him. | accepted that through
his death, my sins would be forgiven and | would be
granted eternal life with God. | recited a prayer of
salvation, and took comfort in a feeling of relief at
that moment. | rejoiced knowing that through Jesus
dying on the cross, anyone could be saved. | felt
that | had something to believe in and someone to
rely on. Shortly after, | confided in a few of my
friends the problems | had in my life, and they
listened. Then, trying to seek community, they
brought me to the university fellowship, and it was
around that time that | felt more comfort.

Onwards to the end of university, my condition
improved, but | felt like | started making excuses for
Christ. | kept acknowledging my sins but failing on
act on them. | didn’t have that much time, but the
time | did have | felt like | was wasting. After
university, life started picking up and my friends
gave me another push towards God.

In the past year, | felt like | have grown closer to
God and learned more about him. The Christian
community is coming together to love and feel the
love of Jesus. | think the single most important thing
is a desire to love and seek God yourself. You
cannot be pushed to do so, and one of the most
comforting things a friend has told me was: ‘it's okay
to say no’. While spiritual growth is something that
God wanted for us as a community, God would be
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happier when you do it willingly and lovingly, and
not through a sense of obligation.

God has given me friendship, comfort, motivation,
and desire to improve, more than | can ever be
thankful for, and | will be eternally grateful. | wish my
faith to grow more, throughout my entire life, and |
want to follow Jesus Christ.
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Mandarin Ministry Report Rev. Dali Ren

Our church theme for 2023 was "Leadership
Training" which guided the Mandarin ministry
throughout the year in the following aspects: to
teach the biblical concept of leadership and the
characters of a leader through peaching to begin
with, then exhorted and guided brothers and sisters
to respond to the Lord’s calling, and to become
influential people, acting as the light and salt of the
world, sharing God’s love, being a blessing to others
and glorifying God’s Name. We have made further
improvement on the Sunday school training system.
On top of the courses of evangelism, rooting for new
believers, biblical study and spiritual exercises, we
have conducted a missionary course for the first
time, which prepared and equipped brothers and
sisters for God’s Great Commission and to become
a church with missionary vision. The deacons
committee also practiced community sensitivity,
discerning the needs of this generation and the
specific mission given to us by the Lord. The fact
that large number of new migrants were flowing in
from China had drawn our attention to start the new
immigrant ministry. we also encourage brothers and
sisters to participate in Sunday school, cell group
meeting, evangelism and social concern services,
and practice being a good and faithful servant, a
wise steward.

Deacons and group leaders encouraged brothers
and sisters to return to in-person gatherings, and as
a result the Sunday Service attendance had been
increased from nearly 100 at the beginning of the
year to more than 120 at the end of the year and
most cell group meetings resumed in-person. Over
100 new friends came to the church last year. In
order to help these new friends to be better
assimilated into church so as to receive pastoral
care they needed, we decided to establish the New
Canada Fellowship, led by the couple Kai-yuan
Chen and Xiang-Ying He, assisted by Ying Gan and
Yi Wang. Ever since its first gathering on August 18,
the group grew rapidly, and by the end of the year,
there were more than 30 people participating
steadily.

From January to April, we invited Brother Yue Gong
from the Canadian Campus Gospel Fellowship to
preach a series of evangelical sermons titled with "A
Good Medicine", "A Path" and "A Lifetime of Hope",
which were the sequel of the sermon "A Key", the
message he preached in the 2022 Christmas
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Evangelical gathering. We had once again
conducted the in-person Alpha course led by Rev.
Siu and Mrs. Siu, along with more than 20 faithful
co-workers, and ran from September to November.
More than 30 seekers participated, and 16 decided
to believe in the Lord. The theme of the 2023
Christmas Evangelical Gathering was "Light and
Peace". More than 250 people participated, and 8
friends made their decision of converting. Last year,
a total of 30 people decided to believe in Jesus. In
the baptisms on June 18 and December 3, a total of
21 people were baptized and 8 were transferred.

A brief review:
1)Discipleship and spiritual formation:

* Sunday School: Other than Alpha course,
there are 4 more courses provided. Overall
attendance is about 120 in total, both in-
person and online.

*  Baptism and membership transfer:

First baptism (June 18, 11 people): Pei-Liang Xue,
Liang-Di Sun, Zhi-Jun Wang, Jun-Hong Xu, Bo Gao,
Xue Cheng, Yi Zhou, Di-An Pan, Ryan Yi, Hao-Jun
Lin, Cindy Song)

Membership transfer (June 18, 2 people): Ci-Wei Su,
Jian Chen).

Second baptism (December 3, 9 people): Xiao-Zhou
He, Fu-Lan Zhang, Xiao-Hua Ye, Guang-Bin Chen,
Jin Wu, Yi-Zhe Tang, Chu-Ting Cao, Hao-Zhe Xu,
Jessica Song);

Membership transfer (December 3, 6 people): Xiao-
Wu Yi, Kai-Yuan Chen, Xiang-Ying He, Fei-Jun
Huang, Guo-Guo Xu, Wen-Juan Li).

Third baptism (December 3, 1person): Ya-Hong Sun.

2) Outreach and Evangelism Ministry:

* Alpha course: September 10th - November
26th, every Sunday from 11:15AM-12:
45PM at church, with more than 40 seekers
participating and 25 co-workers. A total of
16 people made a decision to believe in
Christ, and 2 people confirmed their belief in
Christ.

*  Community evangelism: Once a month, led
by Deacon Yan Jin-Hua, some brothers and
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sisters held evangelical signs at the
intersection and distributed evangelical
booklets in the community.

* An Evangelical Sunday Worship in
December 24, with the theme of “Light and
Peace” preached by Rev. Ren; more than
250 people attended, and 8 people decided
to believe in Jesus.

3) CeII group and fellowship ministry:
Cell groups were running well. We had 2
new groups established this year: The
Hannah group, a sister group on Thursday
morning; Xin-Jia Fellowship, which focused
on new immigrant ministry.

* Meng Wang, the deacon of cell group
ministry, discussed with Rev. Ren and Rev.
Siu how to reconstruct the cell groups
based on the current situation of each group,
to give more support and to develop a
suitable training plan to leaders; A one-day
cell group ministry workshop had been
planned on February 24,2024.

4) |V|ISSIOn
From June to August, a Sunday school
course “Introduction of Missionary” was held;
9 Chinese pastors and missionaries from
the Greater Toronto Area were invited to
give lectures.

* The 2024 Mission Annual Conference will
be held on January 26, 27, and 28. The
speaker is Rev. Lu Zi-Feng, Director
General of the Overseas Chinese Mission
(COCM), and the theme is “New
Macedonia’s Voice.”

* The Mandarin Short-Term Mission team of
4 people (Rev. Ren, Mrs. Ren, Helen Wu,
Vivian Li) had been set up to prepare for
COCM Mandarin Easter Student Camp in
UK from March 25 to April 2, 2024.

5) Pastoral staff
Mandarin Ministry Committee and the Executive
Board reviewed with Pastor Liu Qiang his first year
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of service as the assistant pastor in Mandarin
Congregation. Considering both the requirement of
Mandarin ministry and his personal and family need,
we agreed with Pastor Liu that in December 31,
2023, at the end of his one-year term, he will no
longer serve as the assistant pastor in Mandarin
Congregation, and will be looking forward to his new
direction in ministry. We are grateful to Pastor Liu
and his family for their service in the Mandarin
Congregation, and may the Lord lead and bless
them on the way ahead.

6)In 2023, there are 10 deacons in Mandarin
Ministry Committee: Angela Wang (vice chairman,
and Children’s Ministry), Paul Zhang (Christian
Education, and IT/AV), Richard Liang (Sunday
Service-Usher and Welcome, secretary), Zhong-
Fa Pan (Membership), Vivian Li (Worship Team),
Daisy Ma (Missionary), Esther Yan (Evangelism),
Simon Song Yan (Building), Meng Wang (Cell
Group), Bao Mali (Social Concern).

» Daisy Ma resigned as a deacon in September
because she will no longer be participated in our
church. Rev. Ren had taken over the Missionary
Ministry.

Deacons’ ministry reports:

Vice Chairman and Children’s Ministry by Angela
Wang: Starting from March 2023, | served as
Children’s Ministry deacon, mainly in Senior class
(children of Gr. 4-6). Through WeChat group, | had
been keeping a good connection with Mandarin
parents from time to time, communicating about
children's growth.

1) From September to December, we held 6
workshops of positive discipline parenting training
led by Pastor Eva. 35 parents and 6 co-workers
participated. The feedback was very good, and
parents are looking forward to more learning
opportunities in the future to equip themselves.

2) In September, Pastor Eva organized a P2P,
passport to purity workshop, 4 families participated.

3) During the summer vacation, Pastor Eva visited 4
Mandarin families and organized a Family Fun Day
at the beach.
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4) In November, Pastor Eva organized Harvest
Carnival providing children a better activity on
Halloween.

5) Beginning in December, in order to cooperate
with the new immigrant ministry of Xin-Jia
Fellowship, Mrs. Ren set up the children’s fellowship
on the 2nd, 4th and 5th Fridays to make the
fellowship available on every Friday.

6) In 2023, 7 sisters from Mandarin Congregation
served in the children’s ministry (Linda Zhang,
Helen Wu, Rovena Wu, Amy Cao, Li-Yan Zhao,
Vivian Ren, and Angela Wang) and attended in the
staff training organized by Pastor Eva. Lots of gains.
| pray that the Lord will remember everyone’s hard
work, and | also hope that more brothers and sisters
will join the team to serve the children in the future
and experience Lord’s grace together.

Christian Education, IT/AV by Paul Zhang

a) Sunday School: helps brothers and sisters to
study the Bible, to connect and to grow in the truth.
Summary of ministry over the past two years:

1) Resume in-person class, respond to needs

* More and more new friends who are willing to
learn about Christianity are being invited to
Mandarin Sunday School

— Alpha courses

— Evangelical class: The Gospel of Mark,
Pursuing the Path of Life

— New Believers’ Education Class: Abundant
Life, Simple Bible Overview

— Brothers and sisters desire to establish a
personal relationship with the Lord, connect
with each other, and grow together

— Devotional Bible Study Class

» Teachers and co-workers: reduced burden; more
time to pray for students and accompany their
spiritual growth

« Balancing between teaching and group sharing
2)Team establishment and structure improvement

* Give thank to teachers and co-workers who joined
the team;
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* Need more co-workers.

b) IT/AV Ministry

Appreciations to

1) David Feng, Jason Chen, Jia Guo, Xiao-Hua Pan,
Zhao-Hong Dan, and Tao Wang; for their faithful
service to ensure that Sunday worship and special
gatherings proceed smoothly;

2) Worship Team: Cooperate with co-workers; help
improve the audio and video control process

3) Church IT/AV Department for their Support and
help, for planning and implementing the
improvement projects

4) Helen Wu, worship team, speakers: cooperate
with co-workers; prepare PPT

Sunday Service-Usher and Welcome by Richard
Liang

1) Usher: In June 2023, the Mandarin Congregation
resumed the Monthly Lunch on the first Sunday of
each month, and Usher team were responsible for
rice cooking. New team members in 2023: William
Zhao, Nancy Hou, Yan Xu, Jin Wu etc.

2) Welcoming: 7 brothers and sisters served to
follow up on new friends. We organized a meal
gathering to welcome new friends and introduce
them to the appropriate cell groups. In 2023, 112
new friends attended in-person Sunday Service in
Mandarin Congregation.

We welcome more people to join us to serve the
Lord.

Membership Ministry by Zhong-Fa Pan

1) Baptism and Membership Transfer

* Preparation for baptism

* Filling and draining of water in baptism pool
« Editing and binding of certificates

* Issue membership certificates

2) Membership Meeting

* Notified and provided conference information
» Counted the number of people signing in

» Distributed, collected and counted ballots
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3) Picnic

» Promotion and ticket sale
* Information updating

* Event organization

* Lunch arrangement

4) Church dinner, 3 times

* Ticket sale

« Arranged for ordering/distributing lunch and post-
meeting cleaning, etc.

5) Enforcement of the church policy

* Supervised and implemented the Mandarin
WeChat group rules

« Further implementation of existing procedures,
such as further measures for Yu-Lan He’s violations

6) Attended meetings
* Attended 3 quarterly meetings
» Gathered and sent feedback to the conference

Worship Team by Vivian Li

1) The growth of the Worship Team

» Three new choir members joined the choir family
* Young drummer and guitar player joined the team

2) Special Event

« Participated in joint service worship team twice

* Introduced new forms of worship on Good Friday
service

* Invited cell groups to join in Christmas Evangelical
service Worship, ended up with a good result

3) Worship Team Fellowship started in September
2023

* Raise up co-workers to establish and manage the
worship team together

* Review and summarize experiences to inspire and
coordinate services

» Feedback and comments of improvement to IT/AV
team for a better quality of worship

4) For team member
requirements are as follows:
« Gifts in music: singing, musical instruments, etc.

+ Commitment: two hours of practice every
Thursday night, and arrive one hour early on
Sunday morning for preparation

recruitment, the basic

Local Evangelism by Esther Yan

1) Local Evangelism
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« About two hours on the first Saturday of every
month at intersections, bus stops, supermarkets, etc.
« Distributed leaflets which contents the message of
gospel, church introduction, or Christmas poster, etc.

* Results: Some came to church, some attended
Alpha course and some converted to be Christian

2) Alpha courses:

* Participated in the prayer group of Alpha course
which brought more than 10 people to believe in
Christ

» Conducted one Alpha course in November 11 at
home, 8-9 people attended.

Building Ministry by Simon Song

1) Replaced a faucet in the women's restroom on
the north side of church building

2) Installed tiles on the drywall near the countertop
and hand dryer in the south bathroom to avoid water
damage. The damaged drywall behind the men's
restroom has been repaired.

3) Engineers found out that the entrance to our
church parking lot is considered a flood zone and
requires special permit from the city for any
renovations. The intervention of structural engineers
is also required for further renovation. As a result,
the project of adding a handicapped ramp and
widening the entrance near the electrical distribution
room had been suspended due to the limitation of
the budget.

4) The bottom part of the safety bollard at the
entrance has been treated with rust prevention.

5) Some damaged white drywall in C20 classrooms
had been repaired and painted, but the murals on it
will not be able to repair.

6) Replaced the blower motor on the rooftop unit
above the food bank.

7) With the help of Brother Gang Xue, the burnt
chandelier bulb in Sanctuary A was replaced before
Christmas.

8) At the end of January, the air conditioner on the
roof of Sanctuary B broke down. It had been fixed
by replacing a circuit board.
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9) After many efforts, a trash bin key lockbox was
installed in the lobby. From now on, there is no need
to run around to get the trash bin key.

Cell Group Ministry by Meng Wang

1) Discussed with Rev. Ren and Rev. Siu about the
development plan, needs, and training for cell group
ministry.

2) Organized the cell group leader’'s meeting, which
made a space for leaders to share their cell group’s
situation, their visions and needs.

3) Conducted a discussion about the function of cell
group.

4) Explore how to implement the Alpha courses in
joint group meetings

Social Concern by Mary Pao

1) Attended the following meetings:

* Grace Community Food Share (GCFS) Operation
Meeting

* Caring for GCSF Client

* Social Concerns Committee Meetings

* JMSC meetings

2) Participated in the following ministrys:

* Food bank Saturday ministry.

» Mandarin speaking clients caring

» Thanksgiving service user’s party

« client’s intake etc.

+ Christmas services user’s party

+ Christmas Gifts baskets for Clients Event

3) 2023 Social Concern Committee Quarterly
Report

* Mandarin Congregation - Winter Report supports
Living Hope, New Hope global ministry.

* Fundraiser - The Bekaa Valley provided primary
health care services to Syrian refugees and
vulnerable Lebanese.
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Mandarin Congregation Testimonies
FZ = FE

Baptism Testimonial =% R 8
June 18, 2023
Di-An Pan 5%

Hello everyone, my name is Di-An Pan, and | am
the son of Zhong-Fa Pan and Qing-Hua An. You
may still remember that Zhong-Fa Pan was the
person who spoke so softly on stage that one could
barely hear him even sitting in the front, so | would
speak out loud today.

My parent immigrated to Canada when | was one
year old. Within a couple of years, they became
Christian and got baptized one after another.
Therefore, | was blessed enough to grow up in a
Christian family. Because of that, the path that led
me to a believer was not the traditional way: from an
atheist to a Christian. It's hard for me to tell the
differences of my life before and after my converting.
I need to be more sensitive to God’s guidance in my
life.

From a non-believer's point of view, | have been
living a lifestyle of a Christian: say grace before
meals and pray before bed, read the Bible, do
tithing, and going to church every Sunday. Don’t get
me wrong, all of these things are very important, but
deep down in my heart, | know that doing these is
not enough to make me a true Christian.

| remember that | believed in Christ when | was a
child, but my faith was not firm and my
understanding was limited. As | grow older, | saw a
lot of things that God has done in my life, but | was
still too young to fully understand them. It was so
until | turned to 18 and got into the university. Life
changed a lot from high school to university, which
gave me a chance to start a new lifestyle. As you
know, in high school, if you were absent or don't
study well, the teacher will contact your parent right
away. But that's not the case in the university. You
have to study on your own. The teacher only cares
about whether you have taken the final examination.
So my challenge for the first year was to improve
my time management skill and to change my
lifestyle so that | could focus on studying. The few
years of my high school was during the time of
pandemic when schooling was conducted online,
and most of my time was spent in playing video
games. | was well aware that it is no easy task to
completely change my lifestyle that | have had for
sO0 many years, to adapt rapidly to the heavy work
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load and countless examinations, | would even call
the 4 years of university study a period of underlying
depression, but to get out from the video games
addiction was even harder. Therefore during
university | decided to cease my lazy high school
studying manner and inspired myself to focus on
studying and stay away from games, video and
other fun activities.

Other than joining the Christian fellowship, the only
thing | did in campus was studying. | persevered
because | knew that the upcoming few years will be
important for me and | knew what is the right thing
to do. | read Bible and prayed often. | asked God to
help me whenever I'm in need. As | looked back on
all the ups and downs, it was clear that God has
been guiding me all the time, as Psalm 119:105
says: “Your word is a lamp to my feet and a light for
my path.”

One of my experience | had was on my calculus
final examination. My professor was well known in
setting the final exam test paper exactly the same
as the practice test paper. He told everyone that
examination is same as practice. That was a 3
hours exam. and | had spent half of the time trying
to solve a single problem which had never been
tested in the practice exam.. When the exam was
over, | checked with other classmates and no one
was able to solve that problem. | was extremely
worry that the result of this exam would bring down
my overall mark and this made me so nervous.
Later on, | clicked into a link which | had saved from
a previous fellowship the content of which was
about the difference between the peace from God
and the earthly peace. So | prayed to God, prayed
for inner peace and felt much better afterward.
When the report was out, | knew that | should be
grateful to God. Thank Him for strengthening me to
get rid of the unreal fun. Thank Him for helping me
to focus on my academy and enrich my ability in
solving problems.

Back to the key point. What does it mean to truly be
a follower of Christ? My understanding is to tightly
embrace Christ in my heart, to believe in Him
wholeheartedly, not only recognizing Him to have
resurrected from the death, but also need to accept
Him as my personal Savior, not only spiritually but
deep in my soul.

Thank you all.
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Testimony of salvation 3% R %
December 3, 2023 Mido EZiE

Dear brothers and sisters, | am Mido, and | would
like to share my salvation testimony and hope that
my experience could be inspiring for you.

1. Worldview and beliefs before believing in the Lord

Before my belief in the Lord, | was an atheist and
had a very vague understanding of myself and God.
My worldview was based on atheism and was in
lack of a clear guidance in morality and lifestyle.
Sometimes upon encountering certain unexplained
supernatural phenomena, | would wonder whether
there really is a master dominating the universe.

2.The path to believing in the Lord

a) Initial contact with the gospel

My faith journey began when | was in college
majoring in art history. After having an in-depth
knowledge of many famous paintings, | found
that a lot of their theme display sources of
inspirations from the biblical content. This
sparkled my curiosity about Christianity. At the
time, | thought the biblical stories were just
imaginative legends, including stories of the
Virgin Mary’s barren pregnancy, the resurrection
of Jesus Christ, the calling of Matthew, and the
Last Supper. However, through the footage of art
history, | started to realize that Christianity is an
extremely important foundation in Western
culture. This realization aroused my strong
interest in Christianity and drove me to study the
content of the Bible in depth to better understand
the core teachings of this religion. | discovered
that there is profound wisdom and human
thinking behind these seemingly magical stories.
My curiosity about Christianity had ultimately
stimulated me to take my first step in the faith.

b) Friendship with Christian friends
During my study for master degree in the United
States, | met many classmates who are Christian,
among them is a black lady who became my best
friend. Her family has been troubled by drug
addiction for a long time. However, she showed
extraordinary optimism and tenacity, growing out
of the mud unsullied and eventually became an
excellent art teacher. | can feel the power of
Christian faith through her life story and the
support for me. Not only is this friend optimistic
and cheerful, but she is also very helpful. |
remember one rainy day, when she saw
pedestrians on the road without umbrellas, she
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would take the initiative to let them get into her
car and drive them to their destination.

Her behavior made me realized deeply the
profound influence that Christian faith can bring,
allowing people to remain kind and optimistic in
the face of adversity.

Through getting along with more Christians, |
found that most of them are more kind-hearted
than other people. This belief load them up with
power and allows them to become salt of society,
allowing this society to have more power to
suppress corruption and evil, and to become
more beautiful. They are feeling peaceful from
within and this aroused my further curiosity about
Christianity. | wanted to go more deeply to
explore what it was behind that made this group
of people such wonderful beings and that made
Christian faith to play such a positive role in them.

¢) Immigrate to Canada and participate in fellowship
and Alpha course

| just landed in Canada in November last year,
and have been feeling confuse since arrival. The
uncertainty of the future makes me nervous, and
| am eager to find out the direction ahead.
Reflecting on my life over the past 30 years, |
know that | have made many wrong decisions.
Now | am eager to become a better person and
pursue a new self. Therefore, | felt great need to
be rescued.

Here, | would like to express my special thanks
to Kaiyuan and Teacher He. Because of my
acquaintance with them, | was invited to Xinga
Fellowship to have Bible study together and
listen to God’s words, which touched me greatly.
| am also very grateful to my daughter Beibei, it
was her believe in the Lord from the beginning
that had persisted me in coming to the church for
fellowship and the Alpha course. As a matter of
fact, | had a lot of doubts about the Bible and
God at the beginning, because God is invisible,
and it was difficult for me to rationally prove
whether He really exists. However, when |
started to try to believe in God, | experienced
some new feelings in my prayers and this
reflected on myself more deeply. With the
support from the Christian friends around me, in
particular with the prayers in the fellowship, |
found a new direction in life. So | decided to
accept Jesus as my Savior during the one-day
Alpha camp.

3. The transformation after accepting the Lord as
Savior

Faith brought me with a miraculous experience.
Especially when | pray to God, | can feel God’s
caring love. My heart is more peaceful and |
rejoiced so much more than before. My
perspective in life as a whole has also changed.
Changed from a used to be pleasure and
satisfaction pursuer to the present me, who
would now focus more on giving full play to the
grace God gave me when he created me, to
accomplish everything | can to the best of my
ability in order to glorify God. As Pastor Ren
mentioned in the baptism class: “Face the eternal
life, and live the present life at the same time.”
This quote inspired me and made me understand
that only by moving in the direction guided by
God and with a heart that glorifies the Lord can |
have a sense of mission to do things better. In
my life, | want to be a blessing to more people
and make this world a better place. My mentality
become more humble, | no longer regard my
achievement are the result of my wisdom and
diligence, but admit that they are the grace from
God. His grace enables me to fulfill the purpose
He has on me. | have found the meaning of life
through faith, and my heart is filled with more
peace and joy. | feel no more anxiety while
handling affairs, because | firmly believe that
God will give me the best arrangement. As long
as | utilize the gifts He has given me with my full
potentiality, everything will work out to be better.

May my life be a testimony that glorifies God and
bless others. Amen.
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Transfer testimony 5 WiiE

December 3, 2023 Yi Xiaowu SR
Hello brothers and sisters, | am very happy that | am

going to become a formal member of Grace
Chinese Gospel Church of North York. To be honest,
this is a belated transfer. Four years ago, in

September 2019, | started participating in worship

and cell group fellowship at GCGCNY, and | have

never left, and will not leave. This is the real church

of grace and shelter for our family. My wife Linda

and my eldest son Ryon were also baptized here in

June, so logically | should have been transferred

long ago. However, there was one procedure which

| need to go through prior to the transfer and that
was to go back to the church where | was baptized

to request for the transfer in person. Although | was

pretty sure that this would be granted but wanted to

make it official. So | took advantage of the summer
vacation this year to return to my home town for the

first time since the epidemic. | met the deacons of
my baptize church, made my transfer request
respectfully and got their immediate acceptance and

blessings. | am deeply grateful for God’s grace and

blessing, feeling that this is a one church world, the

church of Lord Jesus. This love embraced feeling is

so wonderful, we have the unique love from our
Lord where ever we go.

Due to the government’s policies and regulations on
religious activities in my home town country, there
were certain degree of inconvenience in our worship,
service and dedication. However, thanks to God’s
grace, despite all kinds of difficulties, there is no
obstacle to stop Him wherever God wants to
revitalize. He will protect and lead every brother
and sister who is willing to serve and preach the
gospel for Him, and bestow them with peace.

In contrast, the environment of GCGCNY is totally
different. It owns large and beautiful sanctuary and
gymnasium. We sing as loud as we wish to without
worrying complaints from others. Offering is
justifiable, open, and tax deductible, making it more
of blessing than only just offering. Thank and praise
the Lord that Canada is a country with religious
freedom. One can feel how valuable freedom is
after experiencing unfreedom. Pastors of our church
preach well, the adult Sunday school is well run,
Grace high school ministry does a good job in
guiding the youth, KLS takes good care of the
children, and all the brothers and sisters in the
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church are excellent. | especially want to give a
thumb up to the "cell based" of our church. | am in
Brother Paul and Sister Sarah's freshman group.
Brothers and sisters in the group are really close to
each other like family members. We talk about trivial
things in daily living, talk about difficulties we
encountered at work and mock at each other in
regard to the growing children. In the group, we can
relax totally without any pretense, speak freely to
each other without worrying about making any
wrong statement. More importantly, everyone cares
for each other, encourage each other of spiritual
growth, and works together on the path of the Lord.
How wonderful this is!

Lucky for myself, | am actually a slow-witted person,
but am able to receive just the right assistance at
the right time on the path of life. | used to think it
was my good luck, but now | know it is God’s love
and care. The greatest luck is to know God and
have trust in Him, and to keep growing in His church.
Thank you and praise the Lord.
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r K L S Children Ministry Report and
Testimonies

Rev. Eva Poon
Setting an Example — 1 Tim. 4:12

Our church theme for 2023 was Leadership Training.
Maybe because | grew up in a non-Christian family
and was influenced by the world, | associated
leadership with power, superiority and pride. Also, |
thought only the elite are qualified to be leaders.
With that in mind, as a children’s pastor, | wondered
how to share this theme with the children without
excluding the those who do not believe they can be
leaders, or do not want to be leaders. Yet the Lord
spoke to me through the theme verse, 1 Timothy
4:12. | was reminded that leadership among God’s
people is not about being stronger or smarter than
others. Rather, His desire is for His children to grow
into spiritual maturity, so that we can “set an
example for the believers in speech, in conduct, in
love, in faith and in purity.” This verse gave me a
sense of direction in how | serve the Lord in 2023.
Among the children, we studied the examples of
Joseph and Jesus, encouraging the children to
imitate them in their words, their behaviours, their
relationships with God, people and themselves.
Among the KLS Team, we discerned the will of the
Lord together at team meetings and at the annual
Training Day, and encouraged one another to seek
the Lord in all we do, learning to invite children to
experience God together in KLS Classrooms. And
with families, through Positive Discipline Parenting
Workshops and Passport to Purity Retreats, we
encouraged and equipped parents to be the
example their children needed, to lead their families,
to co-journey and grow in faith together. What a joy
and privilege it is to witness the children, the team,
as well as parents growing together, becoming the
examples and leaders God can use as channels of
blessings! Please take time to read the rest of this
section, and you will see how God trained up
leaders among the children, the parents and within
our team! God is so good! To God be the glory!

Ministry Committee: Chair: Pastor Eva Poon, Vice-
Chair & Secretary: Edwina Luu, Members: Angela
Wang, Felicity Chan, Tracy Chui and Vera Ho.

Core Group Members: Preschool group with
Edwina Luu, Vera Ho. Junior group (G. 1-3) with
Felicity Chan, Vivian Ren. Senior group (G. 4-6)
with Angela Wang, Helen Wu.
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KLS testimony Edwina Luu

God is our Alpha and Qmega! He is the beginning
and the end! (Rev.22:13) Our amazing Lord is the
same God in the Bible who reveals His glories and
to establish His kingdom in all the earth. The theme
for 2023 is Leadership Training. As | reflect on the
journey God paved for me since 2000 in GCGCNY
until 2023, God has been the same, constant, true,
humble, and amazing Lord we worship. He has
been shepherding me from someone who was
learning about their own identity to becoming a
leader whom He trained for His purpose.

I remember the time when | first came to church to
do some volunteer work in summer camp as part of
my high school expectations, invited by a friend
from school. During that season of my life, it was
also the most heart-breaking and traumatic time for
my non-Christian family and | as well. God brought
me into a community where | could be sheltered by
His love, grace, counsel, and mercies. | also was
saved and received His salvation in which | am so
thankful each day. Since then, God continue to
shape me for who | am today. From being a
volunteer, | became an assistant counsellor, then
counsellor. Later, | became an assistant teacher,
then a teacher. God also led and developed me in
children’s ministry on Sundays by teaching and
leading fellowship for children on Fridays and
Saturdays, supporting our pastors and interns. |
remember that at one point in my life, | was literally
at church for all 7 days! | pursued education in
university as that was what God was prompting and
calling me to do. While studying, throughout
highschool and university, He led me to grow in
various roles to become a leader in this ministry
while | was also being transformed into being a
student leader to an adult leader as a young adult
with my peer group.

When | was a child, | was always introverted, shy,
not courageous, not brave, and not confident. Who
would have known that | could become a servant of
God whom he entrusts me with His children? It is
definitely by His grace! He has built me to become a
spiritual champion and this is one of my missions for
the children | teach and for our next generation. |
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was led and taught by Him through His Word and
blessed by the people He has surrounded me.

2023 is a significant year for me personally, as God
challenged me to follow Him in a new direction
which | again, would never have imagined. He is a
God full of surprises because | have no idea what
He has instore for me but only to walk by faith and
to follow Him humbly as His disciple. He led me to
become a vice chair for children’s ministry and to
serve for our Church Board. If | knew this was
coming in 2000, | would totally be flabbergasted and
not believe that this is possible!

This testifies and shows how God is the King of
Kings and Lord of Lords. This is my faith journey of
God’s purpose, plan, and faithfulness in my life in
children’s ministry. | am in awe each day as he
continues to shepherd, trains, and molds me as a
leader to serve His people from someone who
barely knew Him in the beginning. He is the Alpha
and Omega as He’s been there at the start and will
be until the end!

March 2023 — Passport to Purity Retreat for Cantonese
Families EZ X fEP2P EIEE

KLS testimony Katharine Cheung

Thanks for the invitation from Pastor Eva, to let me
to have this opportunity to share how my family has
been helped and blessed by God through the
children’s ministry. These blessings are countless
so | will only share three of the events and
experiences here.

In the Halloween evening in 2019, Pastor Eva led a
carnival at church, allowing brothers and sisters to
accompany with their young children in joining. The
program of the night included: to make clear the
origin and signification of Halloween, singing hymns,
introducing the gospel, and various interesting booth
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games. She encouraged us to invite non-Christian
families to join. By explaining the origin and
meaning behind, parents and children realized that
Halloween is not an event which is worth
participating in and to celebrate. This also gave
them the chance to hear the gospel, a rare chance
to have the complete gospel spread to the entire
family in a relaxed environment. A calling was made
and | am grateful that many children, including my
daughter, accepted Jesus as their Savior. | still
remember how they lined up to go out one after
another to confirm the decision. | personally think it
difficult to explain the gospel to children in words
which are really easy for them to understand. |
believe this is only the beginning of relationship
establishment they have with Him. It will be a long
and continuous journey until they can truly come to
understand their faith and learn to build up their
relationship and experience with God. But | am very,
very grateful to God for allowing them to make this
start on that day, and | am convinced that God will
surely lead them to grow in faith.

Another activity was the "Positive Discipline
Parenting” course launched during the pandemic.
There were 12 lessons in total and | have benefited
greatly from it. The course provided us with a lot of
positive teaching methods and tools and help us to
learn how to have more positive and effective
communication with our children. My feeling is that it
is not just about learning how to teach and
communicate with children correctly, it also gives
me the opportunity to reflect on my own and to grow,
so that | can learn how to accompany my daughter
to grow together. | am not the only one who has
benefited from this course in deed. From other
parents’ sharing, it looked like every family is
benefited. The tools introduced in the course are by
no means single tracked. Depending on the different
models of each family, the practicality and
application level of the tools would vary accordingly.
Since this course is suitable for all families, it
become a good opportunity to reach out to non-
believers’ families. Conducted in small groups, the
course gives everyone more time to share, help to
familiarize with each other, discuss, learn together,
and grow together. In particular, the hope was to
bring the gospel and God'’s grace into their homes.

My third sharing is the P2P (Passport to Purity)
retreat. This is a camp to help children’s transition
into adolescence. The recommended age is 10-12
years old. This camp not only did help them to
understand the physical and psychological changes
brought about by their growth, but also helped them
to recognize the differences about the sexes from a
Christian perspective, so that they can learn to
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respect each other. During the camp, they were
given guidance and advice on dating and marriage.
It included games, classes, testimonial video, and
other links... It's definitely a day full of fun. | strongly
encourage parents with age-appropriate children to
attend. While participating, it is recommended that
father would pair with son and mother would
accompany daughter in the lesson in order to
establish deeper communication and trust in the
parential relationship.In view of various need from
different families, we were grateful that some
brothers and sisters were willing to accompany and
assisted other children in the camp. For me, this
camp was a great experience, since it had a distinct
content which were explained systematically, and
was quite comprehensive. The content summarized
many areas that | am not clear about, and covered
topics that even | have not been able to mention to
my daughter. The sex education courses currently
being conducted in their schools, as well as the
views and understanding of sex among students,
have far exceeded what parents can agree with and
imagine! As a Christian parent, | think this camp is a
must to attend. The definitions and indoctrination of
sex given to our children by schools and society
today are getting further and further away from what
we believe in. But thankfully, God still look after us
and let our church to hold the P2P camps. This will
help our next generation to view and understand
sex from a perspective in consistence to the
teaching of Christ.

In short, the above aspects highlighted the help and
blessings that God has let my family to experience
in children’s ministry. | am very grateful and cherish
the service and help the church is providing to us
today. | would like to express my special thanks to
Pastor Eva and all the brothers and sisters who
serve in children’s ministry. Because of your faithful
dedication, parents can participate in various
activities and servings with peace of mind. Thank
you from the bottom of my heart.

Time flies and our children are growing up so rapidly.
My daughter is now 13 years old and is now joining
the English congregation instead of the children
congregation. Looking back, children’s ministry
played a huge role and impact on my daughter's
growth. As parent who believes in the Lord, |
absolutely hope that my daughter can take it more
seriously in knowing the Lord Jesus and to establish
a close relationship with God. If we were to wait until
our children to grow into teenagers, it may become
very challenging task just to bring them back to
church! | hope that each of our families can grasp
and cherish all the wonderful resources and
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blessings God has given to our church, to seize
every opportunity that allows them to establish
relationship with God during our children’s childhood
and let them take root in the Lord as early as
possible. May the Lord bless every family!
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September 2023 — Passport to Purity Retreat for
Mandarin Families

KLS testimony Richard Liang

Thanks to God, my son Doron and |, together with
three other families from the Mandarin congregation,
had attended an event led by Pastor Eva on a
weekend in September 2023, the P2P (Passport to
Purity) retreat which was a very relaxing, enjoyable
and wonderful family time.

The retreat was very considerately arranged,
allowing us to play games and listen to P2P course
recordings while at the same time, sensitive but vital
topics such as peer pressure, sex, dating etc were
explored under a relaxed atmosphere, in addition to
God’s mind in these aspects, these seemingly
difficult topics were turned into much easier
communications.

These are essential topics for teenagers to be
aware of, and for parents to provide effective
guidance, yet | have never had any in-depth
interaction with my children over this topic prior to
this retreat.

That was also a pleasant time full of parent-child
interaction. We dined and played games together,
feeling relax and the enhancement in family bonding.

Finally, the parents prepared gifts for their children
thoughtfully, encouraging and blessing them. P2P
retreat is a good start, its reference materials also
provide information for parents and children in future
communications. | believe God will bless each of
our families through this retreat. Recommendation is
made to Parents with teenage children to attend
together.
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Mission Ministry Liza Ki

The 2023 Annual Missions Conference took place
on January 27-29. The theme was “Mission - Begin
with Prayer.” The speakers for the Cantonese
congregation were Rev. Keith Lee and Pastor Faith
Pang; the speakers for the English congregation
were Pastor Johnson Hsu and Timothy Phan; and
the speaker for the Mandarin congregation was Rev.
Samuel Fang. We thank the Lord for their sharing
and encouragement on these three days. During the
conference, brothers and sisters from the English
congregation set up posters throughout the small
gym with the photos, prayer letters, and updates of
the different missionaries our church supports, so
that brothers and sisters could go on a “prayer walk”
and know more about them and their needs and lift
up those who are on the front lines in prayer.

In 2023, our church supported the following
TG  BEXERBOEAE T BYEGERT  HEF missionaries:
fEN - AR - EEBNVEEBEZEGFMERE - S Missionaries Church | Mission Mission
N N , . n Members | Field Agency
WEEMBNBREMNZFEUBHNRAPRE TS 1| Timothy Phan Universities | AFC
b ST R S oy 315 2 et R (B A [ - (retired from his in Toronto
Z HENEBAEREESHEMATEARELENE position in May)
e 2 Mr. and Mrs. M v North Africa Africa Inland
EBEASVEERFHNREMZ TS - Mission
3 Victor and Grace Toronto Africa Inland
Chang Mission
4 Emad Botros Lebanon Canadian
Baptist
Ministries
5 John Chan Global Canadian
Baptist
Ministries
6 Lewis and Felain Germany Canadian
Lam Baptist
Ministries
4 7 | SurajKomaravalli India Canadian
A “ gk Baptist
'l TR Ministries
rnival = 8 Joe Bridi Lebanon Canadian
Baptist
Ministries
9 Edward and Silvia v Panama Grace to
Mok Chinese
10 | Wendy and KK Tijuana, GO
Kwan Mexico International
Canada
1 Fanson Lee Sao Paulo, GO
Brazil International
Canada
12 | Kevin and Jessica v Japan OMF-
Teh International
Canada
13 | Misa North Asia OMF-
International
November 2023 — Positive Discipline Parenting Workshop Canada
, " iz o 14 | Dee East Asia OMF-
for Mandarin Families EJZZZ REIEEE 21 1E% International
Canada
15 | Cindy Lai Cambodia OMF-
International
Canada
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16 | Joseph Wong Chinese SEND
Diaspora & International
Brazil of Canada

17 | AandY v S.E. Asia Serving In

Mission
18 | Tonyand Fiona Lima, Peru World Team
Tsang

19 | Joanna Yee Rahab Youth
Ministry Unlimited

20 | Nicholas Chang v Homeless Youth
youth in Unlimited
Toronto

In 2023, our church supported the following mission
organizations:

1. Association of Gospel Churches
2. Far East Broadcasting

3. Toronto Chinese Evangelical Fellowship
(Church members: Caleb and Wendy Tang)

4. Toronto Short Term Mission Training Centre

In terms of mission education, the Mandarin
congregation held a Sunday school course in June
to August called “A Taste of Missions,” inviting ten
pastors from the GTA to teach a condensed version
of the Perspectives course. At the same time, the
English congregation held a Sunday school class
called “Cross Cultural Mission and Evangelism,”
which was taught by Danny Wong. Also, from July
16 to October 22, four brothers and sisters from
Cantonese congregation attended the Perspectives
Chinese online course held by Perspectives
Chinese In Canada (PCIC), and all successfully
completed.

Starting from September, on the first and second
Sundays of each month, we would invite the mission
agencies from which our church-supported
missionaries are sent to set up booths, in hopes that
through the materials displayed there, brothers and
sisters could know more about the mission agencies
and missionaries and be motivated for missions.

In terms of short-term missions, our church sent out
Pastor Eva Poon and Ida Yee as a short-term
mission team to Mexico on December 18-27.
During that time, aside from doing gospel visitations
with missionaries Wendy and KK Kwan, they also
held a four-day children’s camp, so that the local
Chinese children would know the true meaning of
Christmas.

“May God be gracious to us and bless us and
make his face shine upon us, that your ways
may be known on earth, your salvation among
all nations.” Psalm 67: 1-2
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Community Service and Concern

Contributed by Conrad Chan, Rev. Tham, Enoch
Chan, Mary Pao, Joanne Chan

“The Lord watches over the foreigner and
sustains the fatherless and the widow.” Ps.
146:9a

When the disciples asked Jesus what would be the
sign of His coming and of the end of the age. Jesus
replied that many would come in His name, and
would hear of wars and rumors of wars; nation
would rise against nation, and kingdom against
kingdom (Matthew 24). We saw an unprecedented
number of major wars erupting around the world in
2023. As Ukraine is still resisting Russian invasion,
using similar rhetoric of the Russian invasion,
Azerbaijan launched a large-scale military operation
in Armenia. In October, Hamas threw a surprise
brutal attack against Israel. This provoked a large-
scale retaliation from Israel and led to the
humanitarian crisis in the Gaza Strip. People are still
struggling with stubborn high inflation and high
interest rates in this broken world. It makes lives
very difficult and unbearable to many disadvantaged
communities.

At the beginning of 2023, the committee decided to
focus on raising the awareness of human trafficking,
refugees and immigrants because of the large
number of people who were being displaced and
had arrived in Canada due to wars and political
unrest. The committee decided to sponsor some
more organizations that focus on helping immigrants,
refugees, and victims of human trafficking. We
sponsored the NIDA project in Kolkata, India, which
helps the victims of human ftrafficking in Asia’s
largest red-light district. They teach women how to
start their own businesses in hairdressing and
sewing to help them escape their former lifestyles.
Other organizations we supported in 2023 included
Rahab Ministry in Toronto which ministers to women
in the massage parlors, and the New Hope
Children’s Center in Honduras which helps orphans
and children in poverty.

Grace community Food Share

-With brothers and sisters’ kind and generous
donations with their talent, time and funding; we
were able to run twice a month food support
service for roughly 30 registered families, which
included about 75 individuals.

-General attendance was around 70% of the
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registered number, which was quite consistent
with research on other food bank services in
general.

-We have about 40 volunteers helping us to run the
program, with our part time Administrative
assistant.

-We have seen the high rent in Toronto has been a
major contributory factor to our applicants lowered
disposable income- no matter they are Visa
students; recipients of public assistance; seniors
that cannot get the Old Age Pension because they
are not in Canada for 10 years yet; parents who
do free-lance insecure jobs and of course for
those who came to Canada very recently.
However, with the support of both fresh produces,
canned or dried food and miscellaneous items
from us; they feel being cared for and supported.

-These are the quotes from some of our services
users: “your food bank played a crucial role in
meeting my basic needs, especially during my
period of financial insecurity” “your dedication and
hard work have been instrumental in allowing us
to witness the work of God through the provision
of food to those in need”.

-We had been able to share the gospel more
formally in our Thanksgiving Brunch by having
Rev. Ted came and share a message;

-Our three congregations had participated in our
Annual Christmas Gift Drive and sent out
somewhat personalized greeting cards and gifts to
our service users.

-Other times were through our Caring team
members’ empathetic listening and personal
sharing of their testimonies.

-The compassionate fund policy was approved by
the board that could provide immediate relief from
very difficult situations of the service users.

Finally, we want to let you know we received some
good news from our service users, that they would
not be coming anymore because their expenses
had been decreased as they got subsidized housing;
started receiving the Ontario Disability Support
Program with more money and found a job, for two
of them!

We thanked God for all the provisions for us and our
service users; as those who comes to know Him
through this ministry. Some Food Bank clients
attended a Mandarin cell group and Sunday school.
One of them was baptized after attending the Alpha
program.
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We thank God for Joanne Chan, who has served
faithfully as our Food Bank leader for several years,
but she will be finishing her 2-year service term in
2024, and we are looking for God's guidance for
another coordinator.

NIDA (Indian for
“Voice”) Christian
Ministry is serving
women & children

= victims of slavery
and prostitution in
the red-light brothels
of Kolkata.

NIDA ( Indian for
“voice” ) BE#HE T
BENBEEANEE
BEWRNEZHE
XHEEIE IR

General Ministries

We are still continuing to encourage brothers and
sisters to support and pray for Open Door Ministries.
In 2023, we brought in information of Christians
being persecuted in India and Nicaragua and asked
the congregations to pray for them.

Grace Community Services (GCS) has regular
senior club programs on Monday to provide support
to seniors in our church communities. Programs
contain workshops, physical exercises and field trips
to help seniors understand and maintain healthy
lifestyle.

In December GCS started the “Community Buddies”
program that provides supportive companionship
and meaningful conservations with neurodiverse
clients. This will help improve communication skills.

Do pray for this cooperation opportunities with GCS.
The church is providing donations to GCS and we
need brothers and sisters to help and participate in
various programs so that we could witness the Lord
in our lives in these meaningful interaction with the
program participants.

Our annual participation in the fund-raising event
World Vision Global 6K Walk for Water to support
the third world poor families and children raised
more than $15,000 in 2023. Over 71 people from
GCGCNY  participated, who promoted and
generously supported this event.
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We have held a fund raising for Canadian Mental
Health Association (CMHA) in the west end of the
city, refugee center in a plaza in Etobicoke. There
were immediate needs and brothers and sisters had
responded with financial help.

Our partnership with Living Waters Counseling
Services through the CAP-M program that helps
fund needy persons with mental health issues was
well used in 2023 as people continue to experience
stresses after the pandemic.

Looking ahead:

The committee decided to sponsor some more
organizations that focus on helping immigrants,
refugees, and victims of human trafficking in 2024.
In addition to financial support, we would encourage
our church members to participate in these
ministries and help in person.

“Then the righteous will answer him, ‘Lord,
when did we see you hungry and feed you, or
thirsty and give you something to drink? When
did we see you a stranger and invite you in, or
needing clothes and clothe you? When did we
see you sick or in prison and go to visit
you?’ “The King will reply, ‘Truly I tell you,
whatever you did for one of the least of these
brothers and sisters of mine, you did for me.’
Matthew 25:37-40
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Membership & Community Report
Howard Chin

2023 was a hectic year after the Covid Pandemic. In
person worship, Sunday School, Fellowship, Meals
together, Social gatherings & Cell groups resumed
in person meetings. Therefore the congregations
were eager to see each other again and often. We
would also encourage groups to plan intentional
inter congregation get togethers so we can mingle
with groups from other congregations.

Tri Congregation Luncheons

Jan. 22 Chinese New Year (Postponed from
Christmas 2022)

May 28th GCGC Church Anniversary 33 Years

June 24th Church Picnic postponed to Jun 22nd
2024 due to rain

Aug. 27th & Nov. 26 Membership Meeting

English Baptism & Membership
June 11, 2023:
Baptism: Marcus Chan, Michael Zhang

Membership:
Margaux Kan, Julie Zhang, Miga Kim, Clarence
Chan, Karl Hui, Shervonne Chin

Dec 10, 2023:
Baptism: Nicole Yap

Membership:
Pricilla Leung, Jeffrey Lou, Daniel Tse, Joshua
Wong

(] "*l’ﬂlmmwmmw
righteousy ad gy i thi prseos weord,
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Cantonese Baptism & Membership
June 4, 2023

Baptism
Yat Chuen Chung * Vera Lee ' Jasmine Chak -

Jenny Chan - Deborah Yan - Annie Yang - Tinny

Yuen - Jake Chan - Edmund Fok - Frank Ng -
Marvin Siu - Gbee Tsui °

Membership : Queenie Yu

Dec 24, 2023

Baptism: Yin Har Lau
Membership : Joseph Cheng, Andy Lam, Shirley

Ng, Begonia AuYeung, Lai Yiu Ng ( baptized on
Sep 26)

Mandarin Baptism & Membership
June 18, 2023

Baptism: Xue Peiliang - Sun Niandi - Wang Zhijun -

Linda Xu - Jenny Gao ' Cheng Xue + Zhou Yi -

Pan Dian : Ryon Yi - Edward Lin - Cindy Song ;

Membership: Susan Su - Jane Chen

Dec 3, 2023

Baptism: He XiaoZou, Zhang Fulan, Ye Xiaohua,
Chen Guangbin, Wu Jin, Tang Yizhe, Cao Mido,
Xu Paul, Song Jessica

Membership: Yi Xiaowu, Chan Andrew, He Michelle,
Huang James, Xu Guoguo, Li Helena

Dec 31, 2023
Baptism: M\  Yahong Susie Sun
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HELZRER a1z
2023 ERHMBEBZEEICHN—F - 87F - TAB

E2 - RE - ARBENAR/ A KESISE
HItERESEBRENLERE - HMATKBIE
ZHREBMERT  HESRELEARZERN S T IKE
BRI -

—EHETES

1B 22 BREME (2022 FEFEMIERE )
5828 H XN RABEEMI 33 BE

6 H24 BHEHEAEMLER 2024 F£6 5 22 H
8H27TH -11B26HEEXE

HEEREREE
June 11, 2023:
=12 : Marcus Chan, Michael Zhang
#8E: Margaux Kan - Julie Zhang * Miga Kim -

Clarence Chan - Karl Hui * Shervonne Chin

Dec 10, 2023:
=2 : Nicole Yap
#EE: Pricilla Leung * Jeffrey Lou * Daniel Tse -

Joshua Wong

BEEEREREY

5?’64 /52782023 #£6 H4 H

e ERR BEHK BEMR - BER L
BER R BEUS  ERE . REE . BFE
RIE
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65 [m/7iE2023 F£12 524 H
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BE BHRR MAE, RER, BEES
9 H 26 H)
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= BEIER IVES  EEE
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2023 F+_HF=H
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—% - EWBE

e
HEE  REA
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ZFNIE
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Building Committee Report
Jackson Wong

For the building department, 2023 was a busy year.
Not only because a lot of projects and maintenance
works were postponed during the pandemic years,
but also because our heavenly Father blessed us
abundantly and unexpectedly. | am truly grateful for
having the energy and good health to serve, while at
the same time experiencing and witnessing His
abundant provision.

In January, most of the hallways and rooms were
freshly painted by TYJC (Toronto Youth Job Corps).
Not only did we save a lot since there was no cost
to the church except the paint, but it also provided
the youth with some basic training skills in painting
for them to get hired in the future. However, since
they were all trainees, a lot of supervision was
needed. After that, we replaced some of the rooms
(the conference room, S12, and S13) with new vinyl
planks because the carpet was old and stained with
paint anyway. The exterior church cross, which was
painted with red primer only for all these years, was
eventually painted white with new LED light installed.
It greatly enhanced the aesthetic appeal of the
building and increased visibility for worshippers.

The most complicated project that was completed
in 2023 was none other than the renovation of both
the north and south side washrooms. It was made
feasible because of an unexpected grant through
GCS that got approved in late 2022. It involved
removing all the old tiles, countertops, partitions and
replacing all the toilets with automatic flush
valves. The new quartz countertops are much more
durable and mould and bacteria resistant, hence
creatihg a more hygienic environment for
everybody. During the renovation, contractors had
to overcome the challenge of the difference in water
pressure by installing smart toilets at the south side
washrooms instead of the regular tankless toilets.
On top of that, trenches had to be dug to install a
trap primer that adds water to floor drain traps to
prevent sewer gases from entering the building. The
issue of frequent bad smells in the south-side
hallway was resolved once and for all.

In addition to the above, another project
collaborated with GCS was the replacement of all
the old fluorescent lighting (except gyms and kids
corner) with LED panel lights. Coupled with the
installation of motion sensors in all the hallways, we
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could now save a lot of energy and maintenance
costs.

Looking forward to 2024, we will enhance our
worship experience by installing acoustic material in
Sanctuary A to reduce noise and reverberation.
Automatic sliding doors will be installed at the north
and west entrances to allow hands-free entry and
exit, making them more accessible for individuals
with disabilities, the elderly, or those carrying heavy
items. Please continue to pray for those who serve
in the building department and for future projects to
be completed on time.

2 Corinthians 9:8 And God is able to bless you
abundantly, so that in all things at all times,
having all that you need, you will abound in
every good work.

e
|

1EFEHE

HIBFERER - 2023FZILHEN—F - FERSE
BB LTRMER TIEREE  ERR/RREA

HME AR mRTE - HERNRREESE O

RENSERSE - RIRKNEELENRER S22/

HEE -

—RR - ZHRIEEMER (TYIC) HREDE
EAEBE R —# - WER OHRNXHINRBE
MEMAAE - FHERAAEHE TR - MEESE
BEARRMERHS Y —LEERWRTRAHE - A8 -
HREZREBE - FIUFBERENEE - 28 - &
Mg — LR/l (E&= - S127S13 ) AREEB
B _ERTRIEBRIR - HEMISFERRAEZFABESR
WtFR - RERERBRLLZE THLEDE -
BAKMIRH 7 REVREE - MRRVBERE -

2023 F e R EM T EEBREIE R FERIL
ERIE - BRTEIZALBEML - EBERELER
75 (GCS) #2022 FREMSH—FRIMNER -

KIERRBRRMEEERE  BH - B - TZEEH
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BENPIERRIFT - MERNOREREAMA - Bl
FhAlE - IEMEISEEHENIRE - ERAEFE
ZEREZHH  MAZBERNBEKEFTHOEED
FEBR W ARIRKEEZZNRES  BURIZE
LERFKEERNM - LBLE MKEREEIEEARRE
¥ - BlItZ% - mAERSHREERNEBEFU—5
KIRBIFRR -

BRICZ9h - EREARRE (GCS) &fFNR—EIR
HERMBENELRE (EFSNZERIRIN ) EiR

% LED ERE - B LEFMBEBREE IR -
B U E KREERTIRENAE -

R 2024 F - HARBEABEANLZERI MR
BOIREMEE - ERRMRFRER - EAONA
AORZEEEEEM - UERREEL - HEEEA
I EEARBHEVNAEL - BEERIEFHP
MEEAEBRS - TRKARRNWEREERTH -

L

North washroom after renovation 1L /B/221E#&

INS%E8 "HERSHENER - TZHMEAR
i ERPINEEERRZ  ESTEHRESE"

Conference room before renovation Zi& ZE 215

Conference room after renovation i = # 151& South washroom after renovation BRI Z1E &
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IT/AV Annual Report Firman Lee

Praise God for His work in the AV/IT department!

When | look back at the church AV/IT work pre-
pandemic, | am surprised each time when |
compare to what He has accomplished since our
return to in-person service.

Prior to the pandemic, | would estimate that the
average age of each component of our AV/IT
infrastructure to be over 10 years old. Everything
from the networking equipment, church computers,
audio mixers, speakers, amplifiers, etc - they were
all testing their limits, if not having gone past their
best-before dates years earlier. Today, four years
after the start of the pandemic, we have essentially
replaced almost every piece of equipment that,
God-willing, will last us at least another 10 years for
the equipment that represents the infrastructure of
GCGCNY's AV/IT ministry.

| am thankful and grateful for the work and support
of the small but mighty AV/IT team, which has
helped make all of this possible even

possible. Wilson Kwong, Kevin Ho, Simeon Wong,
Howard Chin and multiple summer interns from
English service; Darius Fok, Kevin Yeung, Kayson
Ko from Cantonese Service; and David Feng and
other brothers working in the background from
Mandarin service (apologies to anyone whom | have
missed naming) all have helped tremendously in
giving of their time, effort and expertise to create the
new and updated AV/IT systems we have today.

God has truly blessed GCGCNY through the AV/IT
ministry. In the coming months, you will begin to
see the visible fruits of all the work from the efforts
that have been put in to-date. Updated homepages
for each congregation, improved main sanctuary
sound quality, just to name a couple, that should
improve the work and testimony of every church
ministry. So stay tuned, and | trust you will see for
yourselves, the improvements that we have
invested in, over the last three years into our AV/IT
systems to make all this possible.

However, this is not all just one and

done. Continual care and maintenance of all the
equipment is critical to maintaining that it will
function properly every week, and will meet and
exceed its life expectancy. | ask of all church
members, and brothers and sisters who use the
equipment, whether it be for Sunday worship,
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Sunday School, cell group or fellowship, or outreach
ministry, to use all of our equipment with care. If
you are unsure of how to work the equipment,
please ask a member of the AV/IT team for some
training; if something gets accidentally damaged
while using it, please inform the AV/IT team ASAP,
so that it can be repaired or replaced for the next
user; and please do not remove any equipment from
where you find it, without prior approval of the AV/IT
team - the equipment is placed there for a reason,
and for the use of every brother or sister who have
approval to be there and to use that equipment.

On behalf of the AV/IT team, thank you for your
continued support of our efforts to maintain and
improve the AV/IT ministry at GCGCNY. We are
truly blessed by your continued support, and to be
able to use the efforts of the AV/IT ministry to glorify
God and to further spread His Good News to all
those who have yet to hear and receive it. May God
continue to guide the AV/IT ministry and bless it to
His glory!

BE/ IR FHX

AR R B/ RHRER LI |

BEHLIBEBIASNEE/MRRBREELEN
DRI - BRIERE SRR ERQEE DA

o
Iy

BEBZE - REFTEE/ARNERLEAFF
BSmEER 10 F - EHEERE UIEK - EE
& BER  RERSFEEN  EAREKERE
BEMNSEERBY - ©PNINEENTSEN Fib
R-SK wRBERNFR HRMEXLER ¥
FHERE  EEMRF  BEARIEANBHERS
/RRETHERRENREREDEEEHZED 1
.

od

HERGFZE/MEEE - sERZ2 RN NEE
AMmAIZRESRMRIN TIERZIE - BE—ERF
1% % K& - Wilson Kwong - ] i &
Wong ~ &R - URZMAKBREBENZHEERSE ;

- Simeon
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BEZHNERE - Kevin Yeung ~ &E W ; BFMNHE
thEEZEERETIENTEM (EERFERSE @ £
UEER ) ERERSRE - BN MEBEMNHE LIS NI -
BB T HMSKRFEBHFMNEMNE S /R R -

HEBEE/AXNEIEREEMGREILORERS
2 EARRNHHAF - AR ZRBEDESHIE - P
BN HNENPIHERIIBENR - BRLE - BEZ
THRBEFUERN  TEENSEERNE - L
BZENEHEBRES TP IFENREE - It - 5
EERT  REECERREIRMEBRE=FPY
B/ R MR EMUE - AL T E—JRITIEE -

i - B IEABRE—SXENGER - WIIER
BREMMES - FENFRENEEERRC MBS
MIEREENUZEEED IEBEBMEmHR - &
TEMEE - AT AERELERBERVAETH
ENMBZHEM - FREEZHTFE - THE /A
B2 VRS T - BB/ OERRMRANRE -
MRECHRBEARENCEF - FRFE/AREK
RESK—LEEIl, IREERABREPRIMNERY M -
FERBNEZE/AREER  DUESREESNER -
URET—UERE  REFZE/MREBESTHE -
BB ORBEURCPERNNERBE - BRELEE
MUEHEEFENREA - WHLESEE—UEE
& AR B A MEZERIEAELERERT -

AR RE/AREERHCHINEEETEENT
B/ AP ERENNESESEE LN

BNFEMSS - ERELENNE - BMEAKEHT
RAEE/RRBITHNENRERLET -

WiE—FLRMAHARRBIMNERNABSHNES -
PRBEETRAT S/ MRS I U EEREERRNE !
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Secretary's Report X Z# Paul Zhang #X 5

Thank God, as the pandemic ends, attendance at the three congregations has further increased compared to
2022. Brothers and sisters have been actively participating in various church activities. We have many new
friends who have recently come to Canada. Brothers and sisters are grateful and joyful, welcoming them to join
us.

We appreciate the faithful services from the church pastors and administrative staff. In 2023, Rev. Sunny Wong
and Pastor Richard Wong joined our pastoral team. May the Lord bless them and their families in their life and
service in the church. Brothers and sisters gathered together to celebrate the retirement of Rev. Lee, thanking
him and his wife for their faithful service in the church over the years. Pastor Liu Qiang ended his service in the
Mandarin congregation at the end of 2023. We thank Pastor Liu for his past service in the church.

R BERBER  —ENERESARLE 2022 FE—DOJ - ERBARBEBRIZANESNIIEEE - K
MEERZMOFEMEANRERANE ZHHERIABRMAED - —ENZREENE TS ZHHERBNHRE -
ECIATRR R MABE LS -

RSB ETHEINROES - 2023 F - SARNMNEYREBEMAZNER - REMREMFANIAERS
MEZBNRS - B —ENERBR-ERE - BERFREWEIRN - REFHEANMSRESFEHNENT
DR - 2REEE 2023 FEAREHERZENSSE  BRHNEBEEZEHIHERS -

—_B_=—FXHFHEE 2023 Sunday Worship Speakers

B Pek B3I S 428 Rev. Fanco Chan 23R 5= Ri {878 Pastor Connie Liu
Cantonese SREEEHET Rev. Danny Cheung =52 ET Rev. Sunny Wong
B4 ED Rev. David Lee &0 k2= {838 Pastor Eva Poon
Z{EIAYET Re. Keith Lee ZHESH T Pastor Tony Tsang
SR #7557 Brother Edward Mok REIXIEE H + Pastor Wendy Lai
£ R II4IET Rev. Dali Ren ### 5 5¢ Brother KP Chung

AR 4RPAWIED Rev. Ted Tham &% R1H3E Pastor Richard Wong

TE K EE42EM Rev. George Yip B 2= AL BM Rev. Jonathan Chan

EE AT Rev. Chi Hung Siu

RIS 5 BN Pastor Lewis Lam

SR Rev. Ted Tham EZBrR4M Pastor Eva Poon JEf ik ZEEE
English Rev. Fanco Chan BRFIER4ED Rev. Danny Cheung R X Z5H Bl
Pastor Michelle Kim ZRRE&&E Dr. Clement Yeung
Mr. Santos Chan [R157T/55& Pastor Johnson Hsu
I 5 AR IIHT Rev. Daniel Ren PR E 7542 Rev. Qifang Chen
Mandarin

FRE®BUT Rev. Chi-Hung Siu
X3 &£3& Pastore Moses Liu
BRIIIE#M Rev. Fanco Chan
J&{I kL& 78 Pastor Eva Poon
KR FFHUM Rev. Danny Cheung
M RE842)T Rev. Dr. George Yip

73y IEBUT Rev. Shizheng Fang
#4155 it Steven Gong
RMEHT Rev. Sheng Song
RILSABUT Rev. Yahong She

B /D ARHUM Rev. Stephen Liu

E&HE Membership News
FEHFHFE AE Worship Attendance
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=20 e 15
Minimum Maximum Average
B = Cantonese 132 197 162
Blz5 = Mandarin 78 138 108
HEEE English 89 135 111
52Z Children 24 66 46
REZZ P Tendercare 15 27 20
f)?été‘ Prayer Meeting (/841 # Weekly Attendance) F19 Average
B = Cantonese (Sunday Morning & Tuesday Night) Sunday 8, Tuesday 16
BlzE = Mandarin (Manday to Saturday) 23
B E English (Sunday, Monday, Wednesday & Thurs) 16

=18 Baptism / & Membership Transfer

BFEE

Mandarin

=12 2023 £ 6 A 18 H:

BIERINEE TEE REABKESE B 88L 58EMERRERE

Baptism on June 18, 2023:

Xue Peiliang + Sun Niandi - Wang Zhijun - Linda Xu - Jenny Gao - Cheng Xue -
ZhouYi - PanDian - RyonYi: Edward Lin - Cindy Song

e 2023 % 6 A 18 B: 77 #F, MR

Membership Transfer on June 18, 2023

Susan Su - Jane Chen

=2 2023 F 128 3 H:

O ZE, 5KE=, HERE FROH, =2, E—8 B2 1F R85, 5RE A Baptismon December
3,2023:

He XiaoZou, Zhang Fulan, Ye Xiaohua, Chen Guangbin, Wu Jin, Tang Yizhe, Cao
Mido, Xu Paul, Song Jessica

BE2023F12A3H: KR - KA - @@ & ¢8R - HRRR - B
Membership Transfer on December 3, 2023

Yi Xiaowu, Chan Andrew, He Michelle, Huang James, Xu Guoguo, Li Helena

=12 2023 F 12831 8:

W20

Baptism on December 31, 2023:

Yahong Susie Sun
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BEE =2 2023F6H48 :
Cantonese EaR - BERK - 2MRR - RER  HBEE  BEE WY RS - ERE
SEE - BTE - RRE
Baptism on June 4,2023 :
Yat Chuen Chung - Vera Lee : Jasmine Chak - Jenny Chan - Deborah Yan - Annie
Yang ' Tinny Yuen - Jake Chan - Edmund Fok - Frank Ng - Marvin Siu - Gbee Tsui
BE2023F 6848 : R
Membership Transfer on Jun 4, 2023 : Queenie Yu
=2 2023F 128248 : 25E
Baptism on Dec 24, 2023 : Yin Har Lau
BT 2023F 12H 24 8 : 8HR, MAE, RFKR, MBS, REE(REIA 26 H)
Membership Transfer on December 24 2023 :
Joseph Cheng, Andy Lam, Shirley Ng, Begonia AuYeung, Lai Yiu Ng (was baptized
on Sep 26)
ZiEE English | Baptism on December 10, 2023: Nicole Yap
Membership Transfer on December 10, 2023:
Pricilla Leung, Jeffrey Lou, Daniel Tse, Joshua Wong
#5312 Weddings
EZEE Cantonese | n/a
FEEE English n/a
Blz5= Mandarin August 3,2023 &% & Donita
425 Newborns
282 Pink 5558 Blue
EZEE Cantonese | n/a n/a
FEEE English n/a n/a
B5& % Mandarin n/a n/a

FBEZ R Child Dedications

BEEE Cantonese | n/a
HEEE English n/a
BzE= Mandarin n/a
Z 1t Deceased
BEEZ Cantonese | n/a
FHEEE English n/a
BzE= Mandarin March 30, 2023 X &%
Dec. 20, 2023 221§
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AB&Y B ML AR B 5 2023/6-2024/5 AT B4 %
Grace Chinese Gospel Church of North York Organization Chart 2023/6-2024/5

Jesus Christ
ERSFE 2 U SO
: Executive Board E5 !
1 1
¢ - vOERE: e Chair: Hoytson Wong |
Membership i FIEN A gea s Vice Chair: TK Wong i
gK b BRICR Secretary: Paul Zhang !
D EICE: BIRE4 Assistant Secretary: Edwina Luu |
* i WA %5 W St o Treasurer: Leo Lou i
Council of Elders ES= VORI VEVE Assistant Treasurer: Angela Wang !
D Jackson Wong |
— 1 1
Executive Board E5 & e e e '

v v v

Joint Ministry a Pastoral Team Pulpit Committee
. @ —
Stewardship Committee ?ﬂ% = e E T yMESE
Building J Cantonese Ministry : Pulpit Cor:n;ttee
g A Committee < | HUEES .
sasTe oo ong B
Chgrﬁleg%lg;llggity ) | Angela Wang IE15
< ) i
HEEERER Children Ministry : Edwina Luu %Jb{; o
= = C ittee < | Rev. Fanco Chan i Sl B A5 Fm
ommi T
: KLS REETE S ———
Community I Pastoral Team
Service & Concern [* ! B E T
>4 1= X el e . e s
TR AR K BAIR English Ministry : Rev. Fanco Chan
Committee < [ Ik 31 R
Finance BEETE : *Pastor Santos Chan
BAFE < | *BlAE AT 8
: Rev. Danny Cheung
. .. I SR ES A
IT P Mangﬁ:ll:nl,\iltlenels“y < : Pastor Michelle Kim
% ) it . R0
EE%I% : Pastor Eva Poon
Mission I A K HE
.. < : Rev. Daniel Ren
=3 . PR A
: Rev. Ted Tham
________________________________________________________________ L e
iVoluntary Consulting Pastor AR — Rev. George Yip % KE# 4k i : *Pastor Richard Wong
! Consulting Pastor in Mandarin Ministry [ 552 TR — Rev. Chi Hung Siu i #4 HEHCHT | * 310 R EHE
| Retired iRk — Rev. David Lee 252 B4 (7/2023) : *Rev. Sunny Wong
I o A S

——

i *New staff 5] T. — Rev. Sunny Wong & £&5E4U i (9/2023)
! Pastor Santos Chan B {517 {20E (10/2023)

1
1
1
i
1 Term ended BT — Pastor Moses Liu 258 /83# (1/2024) E
i
i Pastor Richard Wong #74 R 218 (11/2023) E
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## Board of Director E£55,

*Team lead #i&R (Deacon: Term/year #5:{E/5F)

(Board of Director: 1 year term, start from June. Elder: 3 years term, start from June. Deacon: 2 years term, start from April.)

(ES—F—F ~Bih RE=F—F ~"BEH%A ASME—E WRHRK)

Ministry Committee 55 . &

Cantonese #.3%

English #5E

Mandarin &

Children 5%

Chair

Rev. Fanco Chan

Rev. Ted Tham

Rev. Dali Ren

Pastor Eva Poon

S B A AR R AT FERSZAHT | WA i e A
Vice Chair TK Wong Hoytson Wong Angela Wang Edwina Luu
e #  THIEIR(5/1) # THLIE(S/1) #TERE/) [# BIRFE(S/)
Secretary Firman Lee --- Richard Liang ---
E ARG (2/1) FRIE(3/2)
Worship Darius Fok Xiao Wang ---
R ELHLG/M) FEEQ2/)
Worship Team --- --- Vivian Li
R /NEH 2R 3/1)
New Comer Follow up --- --- Richard Liang P rECEOOI
B A B RRIGR) e
Discipleship & Equipping Rodney Ho (Non-deacon-rep.) Paul Zhang
REIET T4 5E(1/1) ? HRICH(1/2) Tuni
Evgilgelism Winnie Ma (Non-deacon-rep.) Jinhua Yan Tuﬁél Ilj;r
EE BRI (5/1) Andrew Leung 74 B4 1E3/1)
Prayer Judy Hum (Non-deacon-rep.) -
i) FHALTE(4/2) i Senior
Caring & Visitation Liza Ki --- --- B
I L K AR5 FRSE R (3/2)
Enoch Chan
BRABHE(1/1)
Cell .- .- Meng Wang
AN 4H Fih (172)
Youth Ministry --- (Non-deacon-rep.) ---
HHEFL ? )
Family Ministry - Kevin Ho - Ednvva&Luu
REEH T AT B (3/2) FRBEG/
Edwina Luu
HRFEOG/) ﬂ%z;ﬁm
Men’s Ministry .- Kevin Ho .- =
\S?:{:i:%]: i Jﬁﬁ%’i‘éyZ) Tracy Chui
omen’s Ministry --- essica Leung --- .,
T k) wRW
Media Ministry - Xiao Wang - Angela Wang
(RS T EBEQ2/) SEEA)
Children Vera Ho Edwina Luu Angela Wang
S {5 (1/1) BT A5 (5/]) TEE/)
Tracy Chui
IL(1/T)
Pastor Rev. Danny Cheung | Pastor Michelle Kim
ECi TR AT U EIE
Rev. Sunny Wong | Pastor Santos Chan
AR BRAE AT 18

Pastor Richard Wong

i RLEE
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Joint Ministry & Stewardship Committee ¥ 5 &

Cantonese & &

English J&5E

Mandarin [B5&

Building * Jackson Wong (Non-deacon-rep.) Simon Song
5 # FEH(2N) ? HRIE(2/1)
Church Community & Membership Kayson Ko * Howard Chin Johnson Pan
HetiERke R e l(5/1) BRI AR(5/1) HELIE)
Community Service & Concern * Conrad Chan (Non-deacon-rep.) Mary Pao
FhI A% K o 15 BRAEZE(5/1) ? FHGH(1/2)
Enoch Chan
BB (1/1)
Finance Leo Lou Hoytson Wong (Non-deacon-rep.)
W5 B i (2/1) HEHLIE(S/N) ?
IT * Firman Lee Howard Chin Paul Zhang
(REs L (2/) BRI AR (5/1) RICK(112)
Mission *  LizaKi Sylvia Szeto Rev. Dali Ren
Z 14 8 225 (3/2) A GERFUE(1/1) SN E
JMSC Chair P55 & £ 5 Rev. Fanco Chan [l EC44C i
JMSC Vice Chair #1537 & gl % # Paul Zhang 5 SCH(1/2)
Secretary L& Firman Lee 25§ 3C(2/1)
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Church Calendar 2023 #{Z{TE/E
Theme: Leadership Training 4841714

(1 Tim. 4:12, 2 Tim. 2:2, Eph. 4:11-12) (3277 4:12, $4% 2:2, 9 4:11-12)

Jan 1, Sun
Jan 22, Sun
Jan 22, Sun
Jan 27-29, Fri-Sun
Feb 20 Mon
Mar 5, Sun
Mar 12, Sun
Apr 7, Fri
Apr 9, Sun
Apr 16, Sun
Apr 30, Sun
May

May 14, Sun
May 22, Mon
May 28, Sun
May 28, Sun
May 28, Sun
Jun 4, Sun
Jun 11, Sun
Jun 18, Sun
Jun 18, Sun
Jul 1, Sat
Jul 9, Sun
Jul 30, Sun
Aug 7, Mon
Aug 27, Sun
Sep 4, Mon
Sep 10, Sun
Sep 16-17, Sat-Sun
Sep 30, Sat
Oct

Oct 9, Mon
Oct 15, Sun
Oct 15, Sun
Oct 29, Sun
Oct 31, Tue
Nov 11, Sat
Nov 26, Sun
Nov 26, Sun
Dec 3, Sun
Dec 10, Sun
Dec 25, Mon
Dec 26, Tue

New Year's Day Joint Worship st Bl & £5%

Chinese New Year /2 J& ¥ F

Church Lunch # & R4

Mission Conference ZE&FE

Family Day Z £ H

Congregational Membership Meeting (Elect Deacon) &%
Poverty Sunday k8 ¥ H

Good Friday % # H

Easter Sunday 75 i% fii

Ministry Committee Dedication .35 Z= ki

Mission Sunday =&+ H

Leader Appreciation Month $E4HIRE B

Mother's Day &} i

Victoria Day 4 £ #5351 H

33" Anniversary Joint Worship Ht =B F ki & £FF
Membership Meeting & X & (Elect Elder & Director)
Church Lunch # & %

Baptism ;Z{& (Can &, Man )

Baptism 212 (Eng &)

Father's Day 2 #i i

Board Dedication EE & E i

Canada Day [& & H

Outreach Sunday $NE X H

Mission Sunday =&+ H

Civic Day AR H

Church Lunch #fr B4

Labour Day 25 &) i

Social Justice Sunday #1E £ H

Mandarin 24" Anniversary [355 & 37 H U 1E 4=

National Day for Truth and Reconciliation 4[5 E#H B 1 fi# H
Pastor Appreciation Month % ix & A

Thanksgiving /2 & i
Stewardship Sunday X ¥ H
Fire Drill By X ;&

Mission Sunday =&+ H
Children Harvest Carnival & 5
Remembrance Day %% 40 H
Membership Meeting & K X &
Church Lunch # & B4
Baptism 1% (Can &, Man [)
Baptism %14 (Eng 3%)
Christmas Day 2 it i

Boxing Day i+ H

g
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GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH YORK
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED December 31. 2023
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accountant

ONG

chartered

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Executive Church Board and Congregation of Grace Chinese Gospel Church of North York Qualified

Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH
YORK (the "Church"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023, and the
statement of funds activities and statement of cash flows for the the year then ended and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of my report,
the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Church
as at December 31, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion

In common with many charitable organizations, the Church derives revenue from donations the completeness of
which is not susceptible to satisfactory audit verification. Accordingly, verification of these revenues was limited to
the amounts recorded in the records of the Church. Therefore, | was not able to determine whether any adjustments
might be necessary to recorded donation receipts, assets and funds. My audit opinion on the financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2023 was modified accordingly because of the possible effects of this scope
limitation.

| conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. My responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of my report. | am independent of the Church in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my
audit of the financial statements in Canada, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my qualified audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Church’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Church or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, | exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Church's internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Church’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Church to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify
during my audit.

Oakville, Ontario é /1/1 IZ Nﬂvé

May 6, 2024
CMR Wong Chartered Professional Accountant
Licensed Public Accountant
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GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH YORK

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT DECEMBER 31

General Building
Fund Fund
~ ASSETS ~ 2023 2022
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 458,189 $ 458,392 $ 916,581 $ 803,569
Investment (Note 3) 2,120,142 - 2,120,142 2,118,867
Accounts receivable 109,729 - 109,729 137,643
Prepaid expenses 13,130 - 13,130 12,361
2,701,190 458,392 3,159,582 3,072,440
Property, plant and equipment
at cost less accumulated
amortization (Note 4) 46,104 1,343,991 1,390,095 1,435,312
$ 2747294 § 1,802,383 $ 4,549,677 $ 4,507,752
~ LIABILITIES ~
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and $ $ $ $
accrued liabilities 19,374 - 19,374 13,486
CEBA Loan - - - 30,000
Food Bank deferred revenue (Note 6) 95,205 - 95,205 83,520
Short term mission deferred revenue (Note 7) 170,085 - 170,085 146,683
284,664 - 284,664 273,689
~ DESIGNATED FUNDS ~
General fund 2,462,630 - 2,462,630 2,414,699
Building fund - 1,802,383 1,802,383 1,819,364
2,462,630 1,802,383 4,265,013 4,234,063
$ 2747294 $ 1,802,383 $ 4,549,677 $ 4,507,752

Note: The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved on behalf of the Board:

Houtson Wohg

HoytsorrWong (May 6, 2024 T7:50 EDT)

,Director

Leo Lou (May 6, 2024 17:16 EDT)

,Director

95|Page 2023 Annual Report FE R



GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH YORK

STATEMENT OF FUNDS ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

Receipts:
Offerings -
General
Building
Special - Food bank (Note 6)
Special - Short term mission (Note 7)

Other receipts -
Facility usage fee
Miscellaneous

Interest income
Government subsidy (Note 8)

Expenditures: (Note 12)
Net receipts for the year

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

$

2023 2022

General Building

Fund Fund
1,089,294 $ - $ 1,089,294 § 967,924
- 14,060 14,060 15,581
9,918 - 9,918 12,753
1,135 - 1,135 1,500
71,280 68,586 159,866 144,435
36,727 - 36,727 34,140
101,124 - 101,124 39,043
17,696 - 17,696 22,200
1,327 174 102,646 1,429,820 1,237,576
1,279,243 119,627 1,398,870 1,173,582
47,931 (16,981) 30,950 63,994
2,414,699 1,819,364 4,234,063 4,170,069
2462630 $ 1,802,383 $ 4,265,013 $ 4,234,063

Note: The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH YORK

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

Cash from (to) operation:
Net receipts for the year
Adjustments for non-cash item
Amortization

Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Cash from (to) investing activities:

Investment
Acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Cash from (to) financing activities:

CEBA loan
Net cash generated (applied) for
the year

Cash and cash equivalent,
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalent,
end of year

$

$

2023 2022
General Building
Fund Fund
47,931 $ (16,981) $ 30,950 $ 63,994
14,123 119,627 133,750 128,795
62,054 102,646 164,700 192,789
27,914 - 27,914 (78,689)
(769) - (769) (1,264)
5,868 - 5,888 1,605
35,087 - 35,087 41,920
130,174 102,646 232,820 153,151
(1,275) - (1,275) (113,866)
(5,487) (83,046) (88,533) (25,920)
(6,762) (83,046) (89,808) (139,786)
(30,000) - (30,000) -
(30,000) - (30,000) -
93,412 19,600 113,012 13,365
364,777 438,792 803,569 790,204
458,189 $ 458,392 $ 916,581 $ 803,569

Note: The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH YORK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED December 31, 2023

The following notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

1. Organization
Grace Chinese Gospel Church of North York is a Christian church that promotes the Gospel of Jesus Christ,

provides worship services to Christians.

The Church is registered under the Canada Not-for-Profit Corporations Act. The church is a member of the
Association of Gospel Churches (AGC). The entity is a registered charity under the Income Tax Act (Canada), as
such, is exempt from income taxes.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

a)

b)

Cc

-

d)

€)

f)

Revenue -
i. Offerings are accounted for on cash basis. Pledges are not recorded as receipt until the pledged

conltributions are received.
ii. Facility usage fees are accounted for revenue when the facility is used for services provided mainly by

other registered charities.

Retreat and EQ fees are accounted for revenue when the fees payment are received for covering the

cost of the service provided by church's ministry.

iv. Government subsidies are due to COVID-19, including the wage and rent subsidies as well as the
forgiveness of the loan.

Fund accounting -

To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the church, the
accounts of the church are maintained in accordance with the principles of fund accounting. The resources for
various purposes are classified for accounting and reporting purposes into funds established according to their
nature and purpose. Transfers between funds are made when approved by the Board. The assets, liabilities
and fund balances of the church are reported in three balancing funds as follows:

i. General fund is for general operating purposes.
ii. Building fund, which represents resources for expansions, and church renovations.

Restricted contributions -

General and Building funds are restricted by donors for particular general operating purposes or for building
expansion and renovation respectively. For the grant received with specified restrictions, such amounts
received will be netted against the specified expenditures incurred during the year, excess amount of grant
received will be recorded as restricted fund.

Donated materials and services -

Contributions, to the extent recognized in the fund accounts, are recorded at an approximation of their fair
market value, the church is dependent upon the ongoing support of volunteers, the value of which has not been
quantified in these financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents -
Cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with original maturities 90 days.

Property, plant and equipment -
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost commencing in 1998. Amortization is recorded over the

Equipment - 30% on a declining balance basis
Building - 4% on a straight line basis
Furniture and fixtures - 20% on a declining balance basis
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GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH YORK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED December 31, 2023

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

g) Financial instruments -
The entity's financial instruments consist of cash, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, accounts payable
and accrued liabilities and deferred revenue. Unless otherwise noted, it is the deacon board's opinion that the
entity is not exposed to significant interest, currency or credit risks arising from thase financial instruments. The
fair value of these financial instruments approximate their carrying value, unless otherwise noted.

3. Investment
Investments of $2,120,142 (2022 - $2,118,867) is recorded at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates the
market value of these investments. The investments consist of a portfolio of Guaranteed Investment Certificates
with maturity dates ranging from April 2024 to December 2024 and interest rates from 3.5% to 5.9%

4. Property, plant and equipment

2023 2022
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost Amortization Value Value
Building $ 3,021,113 $ 1,678,721 $ 1,342,392 $ 1,378,529
Equipment 180,495 159,121 21,374 23,871
Furniture and fixtures 105,633 79,304 26,329 32,912

3 3,307,241 § 1,917,146 $ 1,390,095 $ 1,435,312

5. Financial instruments
The church is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments and has a comprehensive risk
management framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks. It is the deacon board's opinion that the
church is not exposed to significant currency risk. The following analysis provides information about the church's
risk exposure and concentration as of December 31, 2023.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The church is subject to
credit risk through receivable. The church's management does not expect any financial loss on the December 31,
2023 receivable balance.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities. The church is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of its receipt of funds from its members and other
related sources and accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
change in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk. It is management's opinion that the church is not exposed to significant current rate risk and other price
risk. The church is mainly exposed to interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a change in the
interest rates. In seeking to minimize the risks from interest rate fluctuations, the church manages exposure
through its normal operating and financing. activities. The church is exposed to interest rate risk primarily through
its fixed interest rate on cash and cash equivalents. The church manages this risk through investing in fixed-rate
deposits and plans to hold the deposits to maturity.
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GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH YORK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED December 31, 2023

. Food Bank Deferred Revenue

Total designated offering for food bank received during the year was $21,602 (2022 - $31,166) and the total
expense for food bank was $9,918 (2022 - $12,753). There is cash balance of $95,205 (2022 - $83,520)
designated for the ministry of food bank as at Dec 31, 2023.

. Short Term Mission Deferred Revenue

Total designated offering for short term mission received during the year was $24,537 (2022 - $25,006) and the
total expense for short term mission was $1,135 (2022 - $1,500). There is cash balance of $170,085 (2022 -
$146,683) designated for the ministry of short term mission as at Dec 31, 2023.

. Government Subsidies

The government subsidies consists of CSJ grant for a total of $17,696 (2022 - $22,200) and no more government
wage subsidy due to COVID-19 during the year (2021- $57,644).

. Building expense
During the year, there was $10,000 (2022 - $20,000) anti-hate security grant received from the government of
Ontario that was netted against the cost of security and equipment purchased.

10. Comparative figures

Certain comparative prior year's figures have been reclassified to conform to current year's presentation.

11. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the Executive Board and authorized for issue on April XX, 2024.
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GRACE CHINESE GOSPEL CHURCH OF NORTH YORK
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTD)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

2023 2022
12. Expenditures
a) General Fund

Administration $ 6,388 $ 4,321
Association dues 10,559 9,724
Building 165,225 127,798
Cantonese ministry 14,001 6,504
Cantonese worship and Sunday School 3,115 2,101
Children ministry 2,608 2,341
Children worship and Sunday School 4,905 3,041
Community Outreach - 120
Contingency 1,916 138
English ministry 10,362 7,918
English worship and Sunday Schoaol 2,648 1,589
Finance 16,250 14,983
ITand TV 29,075 18,739
Mandarin ministry 19,200 11,161
Mandarin worship and Sunday School 2,076 1,627
Mission 78,410 67,307
Short term mission (Note 8) 1,134 1,500
Non-refundable GST 9,966 7,453
Salaries and benefits 800,495 732,539
Social concern ministry 53,400 -

Food bank (Note 7) 9,918 12,753
Special events 13,069 2,380
Theological student assistance 10,380 8,750
Amortization 14,123 10,699

5 1,279.243 $ 1,055,466

b) Building Fund
Amortization $ 119,627 $ 118,096

TOTAL $ 1,398,870 $ 1,173,582
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